
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


October 25. 2012
 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on October 25, 2012 at 7:00 p.m. in
the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn
Allen McCarty


Commissioner Absent: Herb Frady, Chairman


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk


______________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  


Vice Chairman Robert Horgan called the October 25, 2012 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:01 p.m.
Commissioner Hearn offered the Invocation and led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda.


Commissioner Brown moved to accept the Agenda as published.  Commissioners McCarty and Hearn seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0 with Chairman Frady being absent.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:


1. Proclamation of November 4, 2012 as “Retired Educators Day in Fayette County.”


Vice Chairman Horgan presented a Proclamation to Ms. Karen Bullock, President of the Georgia Retired
Educators Association, and proclaimed Sunday, November 4, 2012 as “Retired Educators Day in Fayette
County”.  Ms. Bullock briefly commented on her many years as an educator in Fayette County.  Copies of the
request and proclamation, identified as “Attachment 1", follow these minutes and are made an official part
hereof.







Minutes
October 25, 2012
Page Number 2


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Tom Waller: Mr. Waller commented on the following three items: 1) the West Fayetteville Bypass and his appreciation
of those on the Board who oppose its construction and have voted against the incremental funding of the project, 2) the
unnecessary paving of Tyrone Road and the establishment of a citizen’s review board which would evaluate
discretionary projects in the Road Department, and 3) a lack of information on the County’s reserve funds.


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Brown moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 1-4.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0 with Chairman Frady being absent.


1. Approval of staff’s request to award Bid #843- Library Carpet Installation to Mehio’s Flooring, doing
business as Expressive Flooring, for the purpose of replacing the carpet in designated locations in the
Library, at a cost of $35,155.00, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract and related
documents contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 2", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


2. Approval of staff’s recommendation to extend the annual price contract for blended phosphate with
Pristine Water Solutions, Inc., for the price of $71.00 per 50 pound pail, and authorization for the
Chairman to sign the contract extension contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment 3", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


3. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #849 to low-bidders Cole Technology, Inc. (doing
business as PMC) and to GMP Environmental, in an aggregate amount of $22,443.21, for the repair and
installation of the Raw Water #4 pump and motor at the Lake Horton Pump Station, and authorization
for the Chairman to sign the contract or related documents contingent upon the Attorney’s review.  A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 4", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


4. Approval of the October 3, 2012 Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes and the Board of
Commissioners October 11, 2012 Board of Commissioners Minutes.


NEW BUSINESS:


1. Discussion concerning the appointment of members to the Ethics Board.


Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel said this item was intended to be a heads-up for the Board of
Commissioners since it needed to give due consideration to appointing three members to the Ethics Board.
He explained that the Ethics Ordinance that was adopted in 2010 was not populated at that time; therefore,
there are currently three vacancies on the Board which will require appointments.  He pointed out that since
these appointments will be the first appointments to the Ethics Board, the terms for those appointments must
be staggered and defined as one-year, two-year, and three-year terms.  He added that the Board will also be
required to appoint alternate members to the Ethics Board.  He reminded the Board that an Ethics Complaint
has been filed against County Attorney Scott Bennett, and the Ethics Ordinance requires a hearing within thirty
days of the complaint being filed.  He said the thirty day time limit will be rapidly approaching, and the Board
only has one remaining scheduled meeting before the deadline expires for at least initiating the process.  Mr.







Minutes
October 25, 2012
Page Number 3


Krakeel recommended that the Board, over the course of the following two or three days, and prior to its
November 7 Wednesday Workshop, have discussions and bring forth a list of candidates that can be voted
upon at the Workshop meeting.  He noted that the Ethics Ordinance requires candidates to pass a background
check, and since background checks take a day or two to complete, the time line for appointing candidates to
the Ethics Board would be even further constricted.  He repeated that this information was intended to make
the Board aware of the need, and for the individual Commissioners to do their due diligence in identifying,
discussing, and voting on candidates at the November 7, 2012 Workshop meeting.  Mr. Krakeel then answered
various questions from the Board.


The Board agreed to provide nominees for the Ethics Board by Wednesday, October 31, and for those
nominees to be voted upon, at the latest, by the November 7, 2012 Board of Commissioners Workshop
meeting.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 5", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


There was no Administrator’s Report.


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Georgia Supreme Court Ruling Concerning Fayette County Solicitor-General Jamie Inagawa’s Lawsuit: County
Attorney Scott Bennett briefed the Board on the Georgia Supreme Court’s ruling in favor of Fayette County Solicitor
Jamie Inagawa in his legal suit against Fayette County, Georgia, and he answered questions from the Board.  He
informed the Board that due to the Supreme Court’s ruling, Fayette County owes Mr. Inagawa back pay, and that he
would provide additional information to the Board after additional information becomes available concerning how much
Mr. Inagawa would be compensated.


STAFF REPORTS:


Atlanta Regional Commission’s (ARC) and Georgia Department of Transportation’s (GDOT) 2012 Project
Solicitation for Fayette County: Public Works Director Phil Mallon provided documentation to the Board before he
reminded the Board that over the past months he had approached it to discuss an opportunity to submit new projects
to the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) so that those projects could be included in the Regional Transportation
Improvement Program (TIP).  He also reminded the Board that, as part of those held discussions during the May 24,
2012 Board of Commissioners meeting, the Board authorized the three following projects to be submitted to the ARC:
1) Resurfacing three roads, 2) an extension of the multi-use path along Redwine Road in the vicinity of the Starr’s Mill
school complex, and 3) a City of Fayetteville project.  Mr. Mallon reported that the ARC has dropped the City of
Fayetteville project claiming that it did not qualify, and that the ARC dropped one of the three roads suggested for
resurfacing (although he added a substitute road in its place).  He added that the ARC received a number of requests
for multi-use paths from across the Region, and that it had decided to place those requests into a scoping study to
determine what the true costs would be and if the multi-use paths warrant federal funding.  Mr. Mallon stated that he had
a subsequent discussion with the ARC and asked if the County reduced the multi-use paths scope or clarified the project,
would the ARC reconsider the multi-use project for funding its design, right of way, utilities, and construction.  He
reported that the ARC would reconsider the project if it was reduced or clarified.  Mr. Mallon reported that the reason he
was before the Board was because the ARC was asking Fayette County to re-certify that if the remaining two projects
were included in the Regional TIP that the County would be fully supportive of those projects and would be willing to
commit staffing and financial support for those projects.







Minutes
October 25, 2012
Page Number 4


Mr. Mallon clarified that the remaining two projects under consideration are: 1) Repaving on State Route 85 Connector,
Brooks-Woolsey Road, and a portion of Ebenezer Road, and 2) the multi-use path along Redwine Road toward the
Starr’s Mill school complex.  He reported that the estimated cost for the repaving project was $932,000.00, of which
about $745,000.00 would be paid through federal funding, meaning the County could expect to pay approximately
$190,000.00.  He further reported that the multi-use project was estimated to cost $1.1 million of which the County’s cost
could be as high as approximately $215,000.00.  He noted that a portion of the multi-use path was within Peachtree
City’s jurisdiction and that the City might pay for their portion of the multi-use path although there is no commitment at
this time from City Council.  Discussion followed. 


The Board consented to recertify the two projects as described by Mr. Mallon and to communicate its recertification to
the Atlanta Regional Commission. Copies of the various documents Mr. Mallon provided to the Board, identified as
“Attachment 6", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Hearn: Commissioner Hearn replied to each of Mr. Tom Waller’s three items discussed during the Public
Comment section of the Agenda.


Vice Chairman Horgan: Vice Chairman Horgan stated that he was disappointed in the process that occurred in the
recent attempt to hire a County Administrator. He spoke about the problems associated with the first attempt to hire a
new County Administrator, provided suggestions on ways to improve the process, and recommended that the incoming
2013 Board of Commissioners begin the process again in a manner that would demonstrate to the citizens of Fayette
County that the work is being conducted properly.  


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Real Estate Acquisition:  Commissioner Hearn moved to recess into Executive Session to discuss Real Estate Property
Acquisition.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4-0 with Chairman Frady being absent.


The Board recessed into Executive Session at 7:49 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 7:59 p.m.


Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Hearn moved to authorize the Vice Chairman to sign an Executive Session
Affidavit stating Real Estate Acquisition was discussed during Executive Session.  Commissioner McCarty seconded
the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0 with Chairman Frady being absent.


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Brown moved to adjourn the October 25, 2012 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner McCarty
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0 with Chairman Frady being absent.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
            Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                    Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 15th day of November 2012.


___________________________________
               Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk








AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners
November 15, 2012


 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  


Acceptance of Agenda.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


1. Approval of staff’s request to accept an Adult Felony Drug Court Grant Award
in the amount of $152,711.0, and to authorize the Chairman to sign the grant
application and any related documents contingent upon the County Attorney’s
review.


2. Approval of staff’s recommendation to accept a grant from the Criminal
Justice Coordinating Council’s Accountability Courts / Grant Department, in
the amount of $5,439.00, that has been warded to the Griffin Judicial Circuit
Drug Court, and to authorize the Chairman to sign the grant documents
contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.


3. Approval of a Fiscal Year 2013 budget amendment to property taxes for the
2012 adopted fire services millage rate and rate and to establish additional
appropriations for the Fire Fund’s payment of property insurance,
administrative costs, and funding for vehicle replacement.


4. Approval of staff’s request to transfer $4,532.50 from the Warning Siren Fund
Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Account into the Public Safety &
Emergency Management Account for the repair of Warning Siren No. 25
located near the intersection of Highway 74 and Kedron Drive in Peachtree
City.


5. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the
Criminal Investigations Division by $1,780.11 for reimbursement for
employees assigned to work with various federal agencies.


6. Approval of staff’s recommendation to enter into Contract ID No. C38931-12-
000-0 with the Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) for the
resurfacing of 6.47 miles of County roads (GDOT Project No. S014261-PR),
and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract contingent upon the
County Attorney’s review.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Herb Frady, Chairman


Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn


Allen McCarty


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator


Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
November 15, 2012
Page Number 2


OLD BUSINESS:


1. Appointment of two members to the Public Facilities Authority


2. Appointment of a member to the Region Six Mental Health Regional Planning Board.


3. Consideration of a proposed Policies and Procedures document relating to the use of speed tables on select
County roads.


4. Discussion of the results of Phase II of the segmented approach for Fayette County’s Parks and Recreations
Needs Assessment.


NEW BUSINESS:


1. Consideration of the appointment of Mike Saul to the Post 4 seat of the Fayette County Recreation
Commission, for a four-year term which will begin April 1, 2012 and will expire March 31, 2016.


2. Consideration of a proposed 2013 Local Maintenance & Improvement Grant (LMIG) project list for
unincorporated Fayette County, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the LMIG Application and related
documents contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.


3. Consideration of staff’s request to award Bid #850- Westbridge Road Construction, including Bridge over
Morning Creek, to the low bidder Southeastern Site Development, Inc., in the amount of $1,798,747.29, for the
realignment of Westbridge Road and construction of a new 180-ft long offset bridge, and authorization for the
Chairman to sign the contract contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.


4. Consideration of Commissioner Brown’s recommendation to continue imposing the Energy Excise Tax in
Fayette County.


5. Approval of the October 25, 2012 Board of Commissioners Minutes.  Chairman Frady was not present at this
meeting.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Commissioner Steve Brown


Consideration of Commissioner Brown's recommendation to continue imposing the Energy Excise Tax in Fayette County.


In 2012, the General Assembly enacted a major tax reform package through the passage of House Bill 386 (HB 386).  Among other 


things, HB 396 enacted a sales and use tax exemption used in the manufacturing process.  This exemption applies not only to state sales 


and use taxes but also to local sales tax levies like SPLOST and LOST, meaning local tax revenues will be impacted.  This exemption 


applies ONLY to the use of energy in manufacturing as, for example, in producing cars or carpets.  It does not apply to the sale of energy 


for other purposes such as heating and air conditioning.  The energy exemption is subject to a four-year phase in of 25% per year until 


fully phased in 2016. 


 


HB 386 authorizes, but does not require, counties to levy a new local excise tax on energy.  The new authorization was designed to allow 


counties and cities to recoup the revenues lost to them as a result of the new exemption.  The amount of the proceeds from the county 


energy excise tax, if levied, would equal county revenues lost due to the new sales tax exemption. 


 


Due to the county's currently strained budget, Commissioner Brown is recommending the creation of the County Energy Excise Tax 


option that has been made available to replace local sales and use tax proceeds that will be otherwise lost due to the energy sales tax 


exemption.  This is not a new tax, but a way to maintain the existing revenue the County already receives.


Approval of Commissioner Brown's recommendation to continue imposing the Energy Excise Tax in Fayette County.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, November 15, 2012







 


 


 


 


To:  Fayette County Board of Commissioners 
 


From:  Commissioner Steve Brown 
 


Date:  November 8, 2012 
 
Subject: County Energy Excise Tax / November 15 BOC Meeting 


 


The General Assembly enacted a major tax reform package in 2012 through the passage of HB 


386.  Among many things addressed in this legislation, was the enactment of a sales and use 


tax exemption for energy used in the manufacturing process.  This exemption applies not only to 


state sales and use taxes but also to local sales tax levies like SPLOST and LOST so local tax 


revenues will be impacted. 


  


Note that this exemption applies ONLY to the use of energy in manufacturing as, for example, in 


producing cars or carpet.  It does not apply to the sale of energy for other purposes such as 


heating and air conditioning. 


  


The energy exemption is subject to a 4-year phase in of 25% per year until fully phased in 


2016. 


  


County Energy Excise Tax 
  


Additionally, HB 386 authorizes, but does not require, counties to 
levy a new local excise tax on energy. The new authorization was designed to allow counties 
and cities to recoup the revenues lost to them as a result of the new exemption. The amount of 


the proceeds from the county energy excise tax, if levied, would equal county revenues 
lost due to the new sales tax exemption. 


  


Some Highlights of the Energy Excise Tax 


  


·         The local energy excise tax can be levied by county ordinance. It is not subject to a 


referendum.  


  


·         Initially, the rate of the excise tax phases in over the same 4 year period as the sales 


and use tax phases out. 


  







2 


 


Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214  ·  Main Phone:  770-305-5102 · Website:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


·         Following phase in, the excise tax caps at 2%.  If any county has any combination of 


LOST, SPLOST, HOST or MARTA, you get a 2% energy tax.  I believe Fayette’s current 


energy tax rate is 2%.   


  


·         This is essentially a county tax.  There must be a meet and confer with the cities.  If a 


city declines to participate, it will be collected countywide but the city gets no proceeds.  If 


cities choose to participate, they will get a share based upon the same split they get through 


the two underlying local sales & use taxes. 


  


·         If cities participate, an intergovernmental agreement is required. 


  


·         While it can still be levied at a later date, counties that wish to ensure that county tax 


revenues lost due to the energy sales tax exemption are replaced have until December 31, 


2012 to levy the local energy excise tax. 


  


Due to our current strained budget, I believe we should create the County Energy Excise Tax 


option that has been made available to replace local sales and use tax proceeds that will be 


otherwise be lost due to the energy sales tax exemption.  


 


AGAIN, THIS IS NOT A NEW TAX, BUT A WAY TO MAINTAIN THE EXISTING REVENUE WE 


ALREADY RECEIVE. 


 


At the ACCG District 3 meeting, I was informed that action needed to occur on this measure by 


December 1, 2012.  Unfortunately, the Georgia Department of Revenue cannot tell us how 


much funding is at stake with the loss of the current energy excise tax, so I wholeheartedly 


recommend that the Board of Commissioners approve the County Energy Excise Tax through 


ordinance. 


 


I have given the ACCG model ordinance to the County Attorney for him to retrofit for our 


county’s needs. 
 


 







ACCG  
September 2012 


 


 


 


MODEL ORDINANCE 
 


IMPOSING AN EXCISE TAX ON 
THE SALE, USE, STORAGE, OR CONSUMPTION OF ENERGY 


  
 WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. § 48-13-110 et seq., authorizes counties and municipalities to 
impose an excise tax on the sale, use, storage, or consumption of energy; and 


 WHEREAS, imposition of the excise tax on the sale, use, storage, or consumption of 
energy is contingent upon the enactment of an ordinance of the county or municipality; and  


 WHEREAS, _________________ County desires to impose such excise tax and pursuant to 
O.C.G.A. § 48-13-113 has met and conferred with each municipality in the county and no 
such municipality desires to participate in such excise tax.1 


OR 
  
 WHEREAS, _________________ County desires to impose such excise tax and pursuant to 
O.C.G.A. § 48-13-113 has met and conferred with each municipality in the county and has 
executed an intergovernmental agreement with the following jurisdictions:  the City of 
__________________________, the City of_________________________________, the City of 
__________________________, and the City of_______________________________________ which desire to 
participate in such excise tax. 2 
 
 


 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of 
____________________ County does hereby ordain as follows: 


 


Section 1.  Energy Excise Tax Definitions 


As used in this ordinance, the terms: “dealer;” “energy;” “local sales and use tax;” and 
“purchaser” shall have the same meanings as provided in O.C.G.A. § 48-13-110. 


 


Section 2.  Imposition; Rate; Remitting; Recovery; Liabilities  


(a) In accordance with the provisions of O.C.G.A. § 48-13-110 et seq., there is imposed 
within the territorial limits of the special district created pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 48-13-111, 
an excise tax on the sale, use, storage, or consumption of energy when such sale, use, 


                                                           
1
 Use this if the county will be imposing the tax without the city or cities. 


2
NOTE: If the county will be imposing the tax and one or more municipalities are to participate, then an 


intergovernmental agreement is required under O.C.G.A. § 48-13-114 to provide for the distribution of 
proceeds.  







2 
 


storage, or consumption would have constituted a taxable event for purposes of sales and 
use tax under O.C.G.A. § 48-8-1 et seq. but for the exemption in O.C.G.A. § 48-8-3.2.3  


 


 


Section  3.  Excise tax rate; phase-in. 4 


(a) Such excise tax shall be levied and collected by the governing authority of ____________ 
County pursuant to O.C.G.A. §§ 48-13-112 and 48-13-114 and as provided in this section.  


(b) Except as otherwise provided in this section, the rate of such excise tax shall be phased 
in over a four-year period as follows: 


(1) For the period commencing January 1, 2013, and concluding at the last moment 
of December 31, 2013, such excise tax shall be at a rate equivalent to 25 percent of 
the total amount of local sales and use tax in effect in such special district that would 
be collected on the sale, use, storage, or consumption of energy but for the 
exemption in O.C.G.A. § 48-8-3.2; 


(2) For the period commencing January 1, 2014, and concluding at the last moment 
of December 31, 2014, such excise tax shall be at a rate equivalent to 50 percent of 
the total amount of local sales and use tax in effect in such special district that would 
be collected on the sale, use, storage, or consumption of energy but for the 
exemption in O.C.G.A. § 48-8-3.2;  


 
(3) For the period commencing January 1, 2015, and concluding at the last moment 
of December 31, 2015, such excise tax shall be at a rate equivalent to 75 percent of 
the total amount of local sales and use tax in effect in such special district that would 
be collected on the sale, use, storage, or consumption of energy but for the 
exemption in O.C.G.A. § 48-8-3.2; and  


 
(4) On or after January 1, 2016, such excise tax shall be at a rate equivalent to 100 
percent of the total amount of local sales and use tax in effect in such special district 
that would be collected on the sale, use, storage, or consumption of energy but for 
the exemption in O.C.G.A. § 48-8-3.2. 


 


 


(c)  In accordance with O.C.G.A. § 48-8-3.2 (c)(4), if a project of regional significance under 
O.C.G.A. § 48-8-3(92) is started in the special district, it shall not be subject to the phase-in 
                                                           
3
 NOTE: The excise tax is tied to O.C.G.A. § 48-8-3.2. There is no authorization under O.C.G.A. § 48-13-110 et seq. 


to levy this tax on bona fide energy used in agriculture. Please review carefully the definitions and scope of 
O.C.G.A. §§ 48-8-3.2 & 48-8-3.3 to determine the proper scope of the agricultural provisions. 
4
 Under O.C.G.A. § 48-13-112(a)(3), if the tax is imposed before January 1, 2016, the rate will gradually phase in as 


the rate of local sales and use tax phases out. Under O.C.G.A. § 48-13-114, after the actual rate imposed follows 
the rate of local sales and use tax (defined in O.C.G.A.A § 48-13-110(3). It will be either 1% or 2 %, with the 
exception of a city which levies municipal option water and sewer tax, in which case the rate would be 3%. 







3 
 


period contained in paragraphs (1), (2), and (3) of subsection (b) of this section, and the 
sale, use, storage, or consumption of energy in connection therewith shall be subject to the 
rate specified in paragraph (4) of subsection (b) of this section notwithstanding the January 
1, 2016 limitation in that paragraph (4).   
  
(d)(1)  Following such initial imposition during the phase-in time period, on or after 
January 1, 2016, the rate of the excise tax levied and collected by the governing authority of 
__________ county shall be directed by O.C.G.A. § 48-13-112(d). Such rate shall be controlled 
by the maximum amount of local sales and use tax in effect in the special district, but in no 
event more than 2 percent (except in the case where the municipal option water and sewer 
tax is levied where that rate will be 3%. See FN 4 below). 
 
 (2) In the event the total rate of local sales and use taxes in effect in the special district 


decreases from 2 percent to 1 percent, the rate of the excise tax under this 
ordinance shall likewise be reduced at the same time such local sales and use tax 
rate reduction becomes effective.  


 
(3) In the event the total rate of local sales and use taxes in effect in the special district 


increases from 1 percent to 2 percent, the rate of the excise tax under this ordinance 
shall likewise be increased at the same time such local sales and use tax rate 
increase becomes effective. 


 


 


Section  4.  Imposition; Remittance; Recovery 


In accordance with O.C.G.A. §48-13-112(c), such excise tax shall be: 


(1) Imposed only at the time sales and use tax on the sale or use of such energy 
would have been due and payable under O.C.G.A. § 48-8-30 but for the exemption under 
O.C.G.A. § 48-8-3.2; 


(2) Due and payable in the same manner as would be required under O.C.G.A. § 48-
8-1 et seq., except as other provided in O.C.G.A. § 48-8-110 et seq.; 


(3) A debt of the purchaser of energy until it is paid and shall be recoverable at law 
in the same manner as authorized for the recovery of other debts; 


(4) Remitted to the governing authority of ____________ County by the dealer 
collecting such excise tax; and 


(5) A liability of the dealer at the applicable rate on the charges actually collected or 
the amount of excise taxes collected from purchasers, whichever is greater. 


 


 







4 
 


 


Section 5. Exemption Certificates 


(a)  The governing authority of ___________ County, or the collecting officer appointed under 
Section 8 of this ordinance, shall make diligent efforts to identify all energy providers and 
purchasers in the special district and to ascertain whether such a purchaser has completed 
a uniform exemption certificate provided from the website of the Georgia Department of 
Revenue seeking to qualify such purchaser for the exemption under O.C.G.A. § 48-8-3.2.  
Such certificate shall be utilized by such governing authority or collecting officer for the 
purpose of determining the applicability of the excise tax under this ordinance. 


(b)  An energy provider shall be authorized to rely upon such uniform exemption 
certificates.  An energy provider shall not be liable for failing to collect and remit the excise 
tax imposed pursuant to this ordinance if the purchaser has failed to submit such uniform 
exemption certificate to the energy provider. 


 


Section 6.  Commencement of Collections 


The excise tax imposed pursuant to this ordinance shall become effective on ___________,5 
and shall be due and payable to the governing authority of ________________ County monthly 
on or before the twentieth day of every month and each respective month in which such 
taxes are collected, and payment shall be accompanied by a return for the preceding 
monthly period showing the gross sales and purchases arising from all sales and purchases 
taxable under this ordinance during the preceding calendar month.  


 


 


Section 7. Distribution and expenditure of proceeds 6 


Pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 48-13-114, the excise tax proceeds shall be paid into the general fund 
of ____________ County and shall not be subject to any use or expenditure requirements 
provided for under any of the local sales and use taxes but shall be authorized to be 
expended in the same manner as otherwise would have been required under such local 
sales and use taxes or may be expended for any lawful purpose as determined by the 
governing authority of ________________ County. 


 


 


                                                           
5
 Under O.C.G.A. § 48-13-116 (a)(1), the effective date of the tax cannot be sooner than January 1, 2013. The actual 


date is the first day of the next succeeding month following the adoption date of this ordinance unless otherwise 
specified in the intergovernmental agreement.  
6
 This option should be used only when no municipalities are participating in the tax. 







5 
 


OR 


Section 7.  Allocation, distribution, and expenditure of proceeds7  


(a) Pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 48-13-114 (b), the excise tax proceeds shall be allocated and 
distributed by the governing authority of ______________ County at the end of each calendar 
month. An amount equal to 1 percent of such proceeds collected by _____________ County shall 
be paid into the general fund of ___________ County to defray the costs of collection and 
administration.  


(b) The remainder shall be distributed in accordance with the intergovernmental agreement 
as required under O.C.G.A. § 48-13-114 (b) and (c).  Within 30 days following the end of each 
calendar month, the remainder shall be distributed to the general fund of _____________ County 
and the general fund of each participating municipality in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of O.C.G.A. § 48-13-114 (c)(1) or (2) as follows: 


(1) If two local sales and use taxes are in effect in the special district, an amount equal to one-
half of the proceeds shall be distributed to the  general fund of ________________ County and the 
general fund of each participating municipality located in the county according to the same 
proportionate share as specified under the distribution provisions of the first local sales and 
use tax and an amount equal to one-half of the proceeds of the excise tax shall be distributed 
to the general fund of _____________ County and the general fund of each participating 
municipality located in such county according to the same proportionate share as specified 
under the distribution provisions of the second local sales and use tax; or 


(2) If only one such local sales and use tax is in effect in the special district, then the proceeds 
of the excise tax shall be distributed to the general fund of ______________ County and the 
general fund of each participating municipality located in the county according to the same 
proportionate share as specified under the distribution provisions of the local sales and use 
tax. 


(c) Except as provided in subsection (a) of this section, proceeds of the excise tax deposited in 
the general fund of _______________ County may be expended for any lawful purpose as 
determined by the governing authority of _______________ County. 


 


 


Section 8.  Administrative Provisions; Audits; Examinations; Collecting Officer  


(a) The governing authority of _____________ County shall be authorized to designate a 
collecting officer8 for collection and administration of the excise tax under this ordinance.  


                                                           
7
 This option should be used when an intergovernmental agreement has been executed with one or more 


participating municipalities. 
8
 The collecting officer could be any appropriate person as determined by the governing authority. The tax 


commissioner could be designated if the tax commissioner consents to the designation. 







6 
 


(b) The collecting officer shall be authorized to provide for procedures necessary to the 
proper implementation of this ordinance, including, but not limited to, periodic auditing of 
dealers collecting and remitting the excise tax. The collecting officer, or the designee of the 
collecting officer, is specifically authorized to examine the books , papers, records, financial 
reports, equipment, , or other facilities of any purchaser which is required to remit the 
excise tax under this ordinance. 


(c) In accordance with O.C.G.A. § 48-13-118, as part of the audit report required under 
O.C.G.A. § 36-81-7, the auditor shall include, in a separate schedule, a report of the revenues 
pertaining to the excise tax under this ordinance. 


 


Section 9.  Repealer 


All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed. 


 


Section 10.  Effective Date 


The ordinance shall become effective ___________, ________.9 


 


 BE IT ORDAINED this ____ day of __________________, ________, by the  
Board of Commissioners of ______________________ County, Georgia. 
    
       __________________________ 


       Chairperson 
 
 


CERTIFICATION 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of an original ordinance 
duly adopted by the Board of Commissioners of ___________ County on the ____ day of 
___________, _________. 
 
 In witness whereof, I hereunto set my hand and affix the seal of the County, this ____ 
day of ___________, _________.   
       __________________________ 


       County Clerk 


[Affix Seal] 


                                                           
9
 Under O.C.G.A. § 48-13-116 (a)(1), the effective date of the tax cannot be sooner than January 1, 2013. The actual 


date is the first day of the next succeeding month following the adoption date of this ordinance unless otherwise 
specified in the intergovernmental agreement. 





		Commissioners- Energy Excise Tax Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Energy Excise Tax Backup

		Commissioners- Energy Excise Tax Backup-1

		Energy Excise Tax Ordinance 2012








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Jack Krakeel


Appointment of two members to the Public Facilities Authority.


Fayette County's Public Facilities Authority is to be comprised of three (3) members who shall be residents of Fayette County and who 


shall be appointed by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County.  The members of the Authority shall be appointed to serve for a 


term of one (1) year from the date of such appointment and until their successors shall have been selected and appointed. 


 


On October 27, 2011, the Board of Commissioners reappointed Brian Cardoza, Mary Shaver, and Jack Smith to the Public Facilities 


Authority, with said reappointments to expire on October 31, 2012.  On October 11, 2012, the Board of Commissioners reappointed Brian 


Cardoza to another one year term which will expire on October 31, 2013. 


 


Both Mary Shaver and Jack Smith informed the Board that they have no desire to be reappointed to the Public Facilities Authority, and 


both of their terms expired October 31, 2012.  The Board of Commissioners will need to appoint two members to the Public Facilities 


Authority.  During the November 7, 2012 Board of Commissioners Workshop meeting, the Board agreed to provide nominations to the 


Public Facilities Authority at the next Thursday night meeting held on November 15, 2012. 


Appointment of two members to the Public Facilities Authority.


Not Applicable.


Yes Wednesday, November 7, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Old BusinessThursday, November 15, 2012







 


 


To:  Fayette County Board of Commissioners 


  Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator 


 


From:  Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk 


 


Date:  September 18, 2012 


 


Subject: Upcoming Appointments to Various Boards and Committees 


 


There are several upcoming appointments to various Boards and Committees that will require your attention.     


 


Public Facilities Authority 


 


The Fayette County Public Facilities Authority Act (House Bill 1946) reads:  the Authority shall consist of three 


(3) members who shall be residents of Fayette County and who shall be appointed by the Board of 


Commissioners of Fayette County.  The members of the Authority shall be appointed to serve for a term of one 


(1) year from the date of such appointment and until their successors shall have been selected and appointed. 


 


Currently, Brian Cardoza, Mary Shaver, and Jack Smith are the three members who are serving on the Public 


Facilities Authority.  Each was reappointed by the Board on October 27, 2011.  Their terms began on November 


1, 2011 and will expire on October 31, 2012.  In recent conversations, Brian Cardoza agreed to be reappointed 


to the Public Facilities Authority, however, both Mary Shaver and Jack Smith have decided not to be 


reappointed. 


 


Planning Commission 


 


According to Fayette County’s Zoning Ordinance (Article XII Planning Commission), vacancies on the 


Planning Commission “shall be filled by the member of the Board of Commissioners hailing from the district 


which has the vacancy.”  Furthermore, the terms for each member of the Planning Commission “shall be three 


(3) years.” 


 


The terms for both Al Gilbert (representing Post 1) and James A. “Jim” Graw (representing Post 2) will expire 


on December 31, 2012.  Both of these gentlemen were appointed to the Planning Commission by the Board on 


December 11, 2008, and both men have recently communicated that they are willing to be reappointed to the 


Planning Commission. 


 


Zoning Board of Appeals  


 


Article IX of Fayette County’s Zoning Ordinance states “The Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals shall 


consist of five (5) members residing within the County and shall be appointed by the Board of Commissioners 


of Fayette County.”   


 


 







2 


 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214  ·  Main Phone:  770-305-5102 · Website:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


 


 


Appointments to this body are not tied to a particular post so they are considered “at-large appointments”   The 


term of office for each member of the Zoning Board of Appeals is three years. 


 


Mr. Bill Beckwith’s appointment to this body will expire on December 31.  He was appointed to the Zoning 


Board of Appeals on December 10, 2009.  Mr. Beckwith has recently emailed Pete Frisina stating he is willing 


to be reappointed to the Zoning Board of Appeals. 


 


Library Board 


 


The Library Board is made up of seven members.  Four of the members are nominated by the local 


municipalities they represent, and their nomination is communicated to the Board of Commissioners by the 


municipalities (Fayetteville, Peachtree City, Tyrone and Brooks).  The remaining three positions are at-large 


positions which are filled by the Board of Commissioners. The Board of Commissioners officially appoints all 


members to the Library Board regardless of whether they are nominated by the municipalities or are at-large 


members.  All appointments to the Library Board are for four-year terms. 


 


On December 31, the appointments for Jeannette Ballard, Dortha Stinson, and Jean White will expire.  Jeanette 


Ballard and Dortha Stinson are at-large members, and Jean White is the nominee from the City of Fayetteville.  


Each of these ladies was appointed to the Library Board on December 11, 2008.  Within the past week, Fayette 


County received a letter from Dortha Stinson stating that she does not desire to be reappointed to the Library 


Board. 


 


Board of Health 


 


Currently, Commissioner Robert Horgan serves on the Board of Health on the Board of Commissioners’ behalf.  


Members to the Board of Health serve for six years, and one of the members of the Board of Health must be 


“the Chief Executive Officer of the Governing Authority of the County or his appointee.”   


 


This appointment will need to be considered in the coming months. 


 


If you need any further information from me I will be glad to provide it.  If you have any questions, please feel 


free to call me at 770-305-5102. 


 


FLJ 


 


 


 









































































		Commissioners- Public Facilit...ority Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Public Facilities Authority Backup

		Commissioners- Public Facilities Authority Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Public Facilities Authority Backup

		Microsoft Word - Upcoming Appointments

		Commissioners- Public Facilities Authority- Backup 2














COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Jack Krakeel


Appointment of a member to the Region Six Mental Health Regional Planning Board.


In 2010, Georgia's Mental Health Services underwent extensive changes when the Georgia Department of Behavioral Health and 


Developmental Disabilities (GDBHDD) was established.  Part of those changes involved Fayette County being removed from the Region 


Three Mental Health Planning Board to the Region Six Health Board.  As part of the reorganization, counties were asked to reappoint 


existing members and any new members without defining terms of service so that the Commissioner of the GDBHDD could ensure 


staggered terms.  (After staggered terms are established, ongoing appointments will be for three years each.) 


 


Due to its population size, Fayette County has three seats on the Region Three Mental Health Board.  Both Leslie Edwards and Jackie 


Begg have been appointed to fill two of the three seats.  There is one vacancy left.  Recently, Fayette County received a phone call from 


a citizen who desires to be named to the Region Six Mental Health Board. 


 


The Region Six Mental Health Board is suggesting that the new appointee serve a term which will begin immediately and, in order to 


maintain staggered terms, will expire on June 30, 2017. 


 


At the November 7 Workshop Meeting, the Board agreed to provide nominations at the November 15 Workshop.


Appointment to the Region Six Mental Health Regional Planning Board.


Not Applicable.


Yes Wednesday, November 7, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Old BusinessThursday, November 15, 2012







 


 


To:  Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator 


 


From:  Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk 


 


Date:  October 8, 2012 


 


Subject: Region Six Mental Health Planning Board Appointments and Vacancy 


 


I have some information that was recently provided to me for your consideration and direction. 


 


In 2010, Georgia’s Mental Health Services underwent extensive changes when the Georgia Department of 


Behavioral Health and Developmental Disabilities (GDBHDD) was created.  With these changes, Fayette 


County was removed from the Region Three Mental Health Board (comprised of counties comprising the 


Atlanta Regional Commission) and was placed into Region Six Mental Health Board.   


 


As part of the subsequent reorganization, counties were asked to reappoint existing members and any new 


members without defining expiration of terms so that the Commissioner of the GDBHDD could establish and 


ensure that terms of service are staggered.  The number of seats allotted to each County is determined by the 


County’s population.  Currently, Fayette County is allotted three seats. 


 


In October 2011, Ms. Leslie Edwards was appointed by the Fayette County BOC to serve on the Mental Health 


Board for a term to be determined by the “Regional Director” or Commissioner.  Supporting documentation for 


Ms. Edward’s appointment shows that it was understood that two other appointments would need to be 


designated to fill the remaining seats on the Mental Health Board.  On February 23, 2012, the Fayette County 


BOC appointed Ms. Jackie Begg as the second representative the Mental Health Board with a term to 


commence on March 1, 2012 and to expire on February 28, 2015.  (Both of these appointments also filled 


unexpired terms for both John Lane who had to resign due to scheduling conflicts and Harriett Steele who 


passed away while on the Board, and records of their appointments are attached to this memo.) 


 


Recently, I was contacted by Ms. Veronica Terry, the Board Support Services Worker, for the Region Six 


Mental Health Planning Board about the County’s appointments.  After obtaining information on who was 


appointed by the Fayette County BOC and their terms, Ms. Terry has indicated that the Mental Health Board’s 


records will reflect the following: 


 


1) Leslie Edwards completed Mr. John Lane’s term, and that this partial term expired on June 2012.  Then, 


Ms. Edwards began her first full term on the Region Six Mental Health Board beginning July 2012 and 


is set to expire June 2015. 


 


2) Jackie Begg is currently completing Harriett Steele’s appointment which is set to expire in 2013.  Then, 


she will begin her first full term which will expire in 2016.  (The appointment dates for Ms. Begg are 


different than what the Board set at the February 23, 2012 BOC meeting.) 


 


 







2 


 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214  ·  Main Phone:  770-305-5102 · Website:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


Fayette County has one remaining, vacant position that needs to be filled for the Mental Health Board.  On 


Friday afternoon, just before 3 pm, I received an email from Ms. Terry pertaining to the vacancy.  The email 


contained cover letter, by-laws, and an application which are also attached to this memo. (Ms. Terry indicated 


she would contact me in about a week concerning about the vacancy.) 


 


What makes this somewhat interesting is that around 4:00 p.m., approximately an hour after receiving the email 


from Ms. Terry, I received a phone call from  expressing interest in filling the 


vacancy.  (Due to the timing of the email and the phone call from , I have to wonder if word is out 


about the last vacancy—it just seems too coincidental.)   has asked for someone in the County to 


explain to her how to apply for the position, and to contact her at . 


 


My intention for this memo is to inform you of the staggered terms for Ms. Edwards and Ms. Begg as set by the 


Mental Health Board, and to seek your direction on how to proceed with filling this third, vacant position.  If 


you need any further information from me I will be glad to provide it.   


 


FLJ 


 


Attachments 


 


 


 













































































		Commissioners- Region Six Appointment Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Region Six Appointment  Backup

		Commissioners- Region Six Appointment Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Region Six Appointment Backup

		Commissioners- Region Six Appointment Backup

		Commissioners- Region Six Appointment Backup-1

		SKMBT_C25212101717020



		SKMBT_C25212101809300














COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Engineering Phil Mallon


Consideration of a proposed Policies and Procedures document relating to the use of speed tables on select County roads.


During the September and October 2012 BOC Workshops, staff presented a draft policy for the use of speed tables as a traffic control 


measure.   


 


At each meeting, the Board provided several comments regarding details of the policy and directed staff to further refine and bring back 


the draft policy for additional consideration. 


 


The proposed Policy and Procedure document for Speed Tables (see backup) reflects the Board's input and is presented for 


consideration and approval.  


Approval of the proposed Policies and Procedures document relating to the use of speed tables on select County roads.


If approved, the Road Department will require funding for installation, repair and maintenance.  Annual fees for participants in the 


program are proposed but these fees may not fully cover all program costs.  


Yes Wednesday, October 3, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Old BusinessThursday, November 15, 2012







For BOC November 15, 2012 Public Mtg. 


Page 1 of 5 


 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


POLICIES AND PROCEDURES__________________________________________________ 


OPERATIONAL FUNCTIONS 


Public Works – Speed Tables 


200.qq 


 


PURPOSE 


 


This Policy and Procedure establishes a process for the use of speed tables on select County 
roads and provides information on submitting a sponsor request; the traffic study and 
evaluation; public meetings; funding; and table installation, maintenance and removal.   
 


POLICY 


 


It is Fayette County policy to help maintain safe and appropriate vehicle speeds on County 


roads through a combination of proper road design, traffic control signs, pavement markings, 


right-of-way maintenance, enforcement, and, where appropriate and financially feasible, traffic 


calming measures.  This Policy and Procedure addresses one type of traffic calming measure 


that has been shown to reduce speed and discourage cut-thru traffic.   


 


PROCEDURE 


Background Information 


Slowing traffic speed is an on-going problem for cities and counties across the United States.  


Strategies to reduce speed include public education, enforcement, traffic signs and pavement 


markings, landscaping (to create appearance of a narrower corridor), traffic circles, lane-


narrowing devices, speed tables, etc.   


 


Speed tables are a raised portion of roadway, typically constructed of asphalt concrete or 


prefabricated rubber, designed to slow vehicles to 25 to 30 mph.  Speed tables are typically 3.5 


to 4 inches high with a 10-ft plateau and 6-ft inclines on either side.  Tables extend across the 


entire road width and are marked with reflective material and signs.  The delay to emergency 


response from speed tables is not considered a serious compromise of public safety emergency 


response capability.  Research shows that properly placed speed tables are effective at 


reducing vehicle speed and discouraging cut-thru traffic1.   


 


For purposes of this Policy and Procedure, the term speed table also includes speed humps, 


which are similar to tables but without the flat plateau between the inclines.  Speed tables are 


specified in lieu of humps when there is need for the device to serve as a crosswalk and/or a 


gentler ride is desired.   


 


No public street or road in unincorporated Fayette County shall have speed humps, speed 


tables or similar devices installed without the specific approval of the Board of Commissioners.   







For BOC November 15, 2012 Public Mtg. 


Page 2 of 5 


 


Sponsor Request 


The request for the installation of speed tables shall be initiated by a project sponsor.  The 


sponsor shall be a property owner within the subdivision (if commonly platted) or on the road for 


which the traffic calming is requested.  The sponsor shall serve as the primary point of contact 


for County staff during the project and shall be responsible for providing necessary information, 


petitions, funding, etc.   


 


To start the evaluation process, the sponsor should complete and submit a Speed Table 


Sponsor Request Form, available online at www.fayettecountyga.gov or by contacting Fayette 


County Public Works.   


 


 Public Works 


115 McDonough Road 


 Fayetteville, GA  30214 


 (T) 770-320-6010 


(F) 770-719-0871 


publicworks@fayettecountyga.gov  


 


Public Works will review the request to determine if the noted roads are eligible for speed tables 


and look for any unusual circumstance that could preclude their installation.  If none, the County 


will proceed to the next step.   


Traffic Study and Evaluation Criteria 


Upon receipt of a valid request for speed tables, Public Works will ask the Fayette County 


Sheriff’s Office to measure directional traffic volume and speed over a 24-hour period.  Data 


from the study will be used to determine the mode and average vehicle speed, the percent of 


vehicles exceeding the posted speed, and the 85th percentile of speed.  This information will be 


shared with the project sponsor.   


 


Unless approved otherwise by the Board of Commissioners, the following evaluation criteria 


shall be satisfied for speed table installation: 


 


1. The roads identified for tables are County Local or Internal Local roads, per the County’s 


Thoroughfare Plan;   


2. The posted speed limit is 30 mph or less;   


3. The 85th percentile speed is at least 10 mph over the posted speed limit;   


4. At least 80 percent of all property owners within the Petition Area are supportive of the 


speed table(s), as demonstrated by the Petition Signature Sheet;   


5. The road grade is 8 percent or less; and 


6. There are no sight distance concerns around the proposed speed tables.   


 


Speed tables are not advised for locations with 85th percentile speeds below 30 mph since the 


tables are designed to maintain speeds between 25 and 30 mph and would therefore provide 



http://www.fayettecountyga.gov/

mailto:publicworks@fayettecountyga.gov





For BOC November 15, 2012 Public Mtg. 


Page 3 of 5 


 


little benefit.  Tables in series should be spaced 300 to 500 feet apart as research shows this is 


most effective at lowering the 85th percentile speed to the target range2.   


Petition Area and Property Owner Support 


Communities impacted by proposed speed tables shall demonstrate support by collecting the 


required number of affirmative votes from property owners in the Petition Area using the Fayette 


County Speed Table Petition form.  The Petition Area is determined by road configuration, as 


described below.  Properties may not be added to or subtracted from the Petition Area for 


purposes of changing the percent of affirmative support.   


 


 Dead-End Roads and Single Entrance Subdivisions – For traffic calming requests on 


dead-end roads or within subdivisions having one entrance, the Petition Area includes all 


properties that are “downstream” of a proposed table plus and any “upstream” properties 


that are entirely or partially within 100 feet of a table.  The 100 feet is measured along 


the road’s centerline and does not extend down intersecting roads.  “Downstream” 


properties are those that would be accessible only by crossing one or more of the 


proposed tables.  “Upstream” properties, conversely, would be accessible without 


crossing a speed table.   


Alternatively, the sponsor may request, in writing, that the Petition Area include all 


properties in the subdivision (if commonly platted) or having frontage along the road (if 


not commonly platted).   


 


 Thru Streets and Multi Entrance Subdivisions – For traffic calming requests on thru 


streets or within subdivisions having two or more entrances, the Petition Area includes 


all properties having frontage on the road plus all properties on side streets whose sole 


access is off the road.  The County Engineer may modify the prescribed Petition Area to 


account for intersections, loop roads or other configurations that justify site-specific 


input.  Modifications to the Petition Area shall be consistent with the overall goal of 


getting input from property owners most affected by the proposed tables and excluding 


those who are not.   


 


All property owners in the Petition Area, including undeveloped lots, shall be given an 


opportunity to sign the form.  Properties without a valid signature will be counted as “no” votes.  


The vote and signature must be by the legal owner(s).  Spouses cannot substitute for one 


another and both must sign if they are joint legal owners.  Tenants may not sign for the property 


owner(s).   


 


The completed petition must be signed, with witnesses, and returned to Public Works where the 


parcels and signatures will be checked against County tax records.  In the event of a recent 


change of ownership, appropriate documentation may be considered in lieu of tax records.  


Signatures may not be withdrawn from a petition once submitted to Public Works.   


 







For BOC November 15, 2012 Public Mtg. 


Page 4 of 5 


 


Affirmative support is determined by dividing the number of “yes” votes by the total number of 


properties in the Petition Area.  Each lot counts as one vote.  Common areas and amenity areas 


are excluded.  Petitions that meet the affirmative support requirements will be presented to the 


Board of Commissioners at a Public Meeting.   


Public Meeting(s) 


Upon receipt of a petition and confirmation of the required signatures, Public Works will prepare 


an agenda request for consideration by the Board of Commissioners at a Public Meeting.  The 


agenda request will include details on the type, number and location of the proposed tables.  


Specifically, the County Engineer shall recommend to the Board the: 


 material type and specific design of the speed tables; 


 exact locations for installation; and 


 number of devices to be installed. 


 


At this meeting the public may provide written or verbal comments in support or opposition to 


the proposal.  As appropriate, staff from Public Works may comment on the request and provide 


background information, including a review of the traffic study data.  Ultimately, the Board of 


Commissioners will approve or deny the request.   


Funding 


Since speed tables are installed for the benefit of a select group of property owners, costs for 


their purchase, installation, maintenance, repair and replacement are partially offset by annual 


fees paid by the property owners in the Petition Area.   


 


This fee, currently set at $15 per year per parcel, is added to the property tax bills for all lots 


within a Petition Area.  The revenue from the traffic calming fee is tracked independent of the 


County’s general fund and may only be used for the design, installation, maintenance, repair, 


replacement and removal of traffic calming measures in the unincorporated County.  The annual 


fee is set by the Board of Commissioners and may go up or down over time based on the 


accumulated reserve and program costs.   


 


Subdivisions may opt-out of a traffic calming Petition Area by following the procedures 


described hereafter.  The removal of the annual fee will be effective in the following tax year.  


Tables removed from a subdivision will remain the property of Fayette County.   


Installation and Maintenance 


Speed tables will be purchased, installed and maintained by the Fayette County Road 


Department.  Speed tables may be pre-fabricated or constructed in-place using asphaltic 


concrete.  The tables will be marked with thermoplastic or other reflective material.  Warning 


signs will also be placed around the tables.   


 


The Road Department will procure the material for the speed table(s) only after all the above 


requirements have been satisfied, including approval from the Board of Commissioners.  







For BOC November 15, 2012 Public Mtg. 


Page 5 of 5 


 


Installation will typically be completed within three months of Commissioner approval, if funding 


is available. 


 


Speed tables and associated striping and signs will be maintained by the County’s Road 


Department.   


Opt-Out Procedures 


Sponsors may petition for removal of one or more speed tables at any time.  The process for 


removal requires the same petition and number of supportive signatures as required for 


installation.  Only property owners in the Petition Area may vote to remove a speed table.  


Similar to installation, removal requires approval by the Board of Commissioners.  If approved, 


the tables, signs, and striping will be removed by the Road Department and necessary 


repairs/patches will be made to the road.   


 


As noted above, the annual assessment fee will not be removed from a property’s tax bill until 


the year after a Petition Area opts-out of the program.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Footnotes 


1 Updated Guidelines for the Design and Application of Speed Humps by M. Parkhill, R. Sooklall, 


and G. Bahar.   


2 Gwinnett County Speed Hump Program Manual.  Gwinnett County Department of Transportation, 


Traffic Engineering and Planning Division, Traffic Studies Section.  December 2008. 


Other References 


An internal Fayette County memorandum regarding Traffic Calming Devices dated March 27, 


2007. 


http://www.trafficlogix.com/en/.  Traffic Logix is located in Spring Valley, NY 


Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, 2009 Edition with Revisions No. 1 and 2.  , U.S. 


Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration.   


Summary of a Proposed Recommended Practice:  Guidelines for the Design and Application of 


Speed Humps by R. Elizer, Jr., PE.  ITE Journal, May 1993. 



http://www.trafficlogix.com/en/





Speed Table Sponsor Request Form 


 
Fayette County 


Department of Public Works 
115 McDonough Road 
Fayetteville, GA  30215 


770-320-6010 (T) 
770-719-0871 (F) 


publicworks@fayettecountyga.gov 
 
Fayette County maintains a speed table program as an option for helping control 
vehicle speeds and/or cut-through traffic on County Local and Internal Local 
Roads.  Details of the program are defined in Fayette County’s Policies and 
Procedures Document for Speed Tables, available online at 
www.fayettecountyga.gov or by contacting Public Works.   
 
The first step for determining eligibility in the program is to complete this form 
and submit it to Public Works.   
 
Sponsor Contact Information 
 
Name:   ___________________________________________ 


Address:  ___________________________________________ 


Telephone:   ___________________________________________ 


Email:   ___________________________________________ 


 
Project Description 
 
Location:  ___________________________________________ 
(subdivision or street name) 


Problem:  ___________________________________________ 
(e.g., speed, cut-through traffic, pedestrian crossing) 


Number of Tables Envisioned: ________________________________ 
(leave blank if unknown) 


 
Have you read the Policies and Procedures Document for Speed Tables? 


Yes  □  No  □ 


 
Staff Use Only 


Date Received:  ___________ Date Reviewed:  ___________ By:  ________________ 


Project Eligible for Speed Tables?  ____________________________________________ 
 



http://www.fayettecountyga.gov/





 
Speed Table Petition Cover Letter 


 
Fayette County 


Department of Public Works 
115 McDonough Road 
Fayetteville, GA  30215 


770-320-6010 
publicworks@fayettecountyga.gov 


 
 
Petition for Speed Table 
 


We the undersigned, all being property owners along the road of, or within the 
subdivision of “___________________________”, do hereby petition for 
installation of speed tables. 
 
Each of us does here by pledge and consent to the levying of a lien by Fayette 
County against property we own for the purpose of payment of the cost of 
installing and/or maintaining the speed tables.  There are _____ number of lots 
currently in/along “____________________” and each owner as shown on the 
tax records has affirmatively signed this petition or their indication for disapproval 
is noted herein.   
 
This petition represents _____ affirmative votes or ______% of the Petition Area.   
 
Your affirmative signature on this petition indicates that you have read and 
fully understand Fayette County’s Policies and Procedures for Speed 
Tables, available online at www.FayetteCountyga.gov or by contacting 
Public Works.   
 
Personally appeared before me, a Notary Public, the undersigned affiant, who 
says an oath that ___________________________ is one of the subscribing 
witness to the within instrument; that each of said witnesses saw the execution 
and delivery of same by each grantor therein for the purpose set forth; and that 
each of said witnesses signed the same as purported. 
 
Sworn to and Subscribed before me, this _______ day of ________________, 
20____.  
 
 
 
_______________________________________  
Notary Signature 
Fayette County, State of Georgia 
 
 



http://www.fayettecountyga.gov/





Fayette County Speed Table Program 
Petition Signature Sheet (No. ___ of ___) 


Subdivision/Road Name:         
 
Notes: 
1. There is an annual fee for all parcels within a Speed Table Petition Area. 
2. All property owners, as indicated on tax records, must individually sign and indicate Y/N for a 


particular parcel.   
 
 


        
Lot Number per Final Plat (if known) 


 


               
Property Owner(s)      Daytime Telephone Number 


 
        Yes No (Check Y/N for each Signature) 


Property Address (street & number) 


 


          


Signature & Date    


 


               


Signature & Date         Witness 


 
 
 


        
Lot Number per Final Plat (if known) 


 


               
Property Owner(s)      Daytime Telephone Number 


 


        Yes No (Check Y/N for each Signature) 


Property Address (street & number) 


 


          


Signature & Date    


 


               


Signature & Date         Witness 


 
 
 


        
Lot Number per Final Plat (if known) 


 


               
Property Owner(s)      Daytime Telephone Number 


 


        Yes No (Check Y/N for each Signature) 


Property Address (street & number) 


 


          


Signature & Date    


 


               


Signature & Date         Witness 


 





		Engineering- Speed Table Agenda Request File

		Engineering- Speed Table Backup

		Policies and Procedures for Speed Tables

		Speed Table Sponsor Request Form

		Speed Table Petition Cover Letter

		Speed Table Petition Signature Sheet








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Finance Mary S Holland


Approval of a Fiscal Year 2013 budget amendment to property taxes for the 2012 adopted fire services millage rate and to establish 


additional appropriations for the Fire Fund's payment of property insurance, administrative costs, and funding for vehicle replacement. 


The adopted FY2013 budget used the 2011 millage rate of 2.5 to determine property tax revenues for fire services. Staff presented and 


requested an increase in the Fire Fund's millage to 3.03 which was approved by the Board of Commissioners on August 23, 2012 via 


Resolution 2012-18. 


 


As per the Tax Commissioner's office, the 2012 tax levy for fire services totaled $5,343,280.61. This is an increase in revenues of 


approximately $843,000 based on the original budget of $4,499,600.  In addition, expenditures in the amount of $562,000 need to be 


funded by the Fire Fund and have been included with staff's proposal. 


 


Attached is a schedule outlining the proposed amended budget.  


       


Approval of a Fiscal Year 2013 budget amendment to property taxes for the 2012 adopted fire services millage rate and to establish 


additional appropriations for the Fire Fund's payment of property insurance, administrative costs, and funding for vehicle replacement. 


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, August 23, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, November 15, 2012







Original Revised


FIRE FUND - Budget Amendments Budget Increase Decrease Budget


27000001 311110 TAXES - Current - Real Property (5,005,000)$  (818,000)$  (5,823,000)$   


27000001 311310 TAXES - Current - Personal Property (128,000)        (25,000)      (153,000)         


(To adjust the FY2013 fire revenue budget for the increase in millage


  rate from 2.5 to 3.03)


27030550 523180 Insurance & Bond Services -$                64,000$     64,000$          


27090110 610100 Transfers to General Fund  (Admin Costs) -                      150,000     150,000          


27090110 610610 Transfers to Vehicle Replacement -                      348,000     348,000          


270 134220 Fire Fund Balance - Restricted -                      281,000     281,000          


(To adjust the FY2013 fire expenditure budget for property insurance,


  administrative costs, and vehicle replacement funding) -$                


GENERAL FUND - Budget Amendments


10030090 523180 Insurance & Bond Services 330,000$       (64,000)$    266,000$        


10000001 390270 Transfers from Fire Fund  (Admin Costs) -                      (150,000)$  (150,000)         


100 134220 General Fund Balance - Unassigned -                      214,000     214,000          


(To adjust the FY2013 General Fund budget for property insurance and 


  administrative costs to be paid by the Fire Fund) -$                


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA


FIRE FUND / GENERAL FUND


RECOMMENDED AMENDMENT TO THE FY2013 BUDGET





		Finance- 2013 Fire Fund Budget Amendment Agenda Request File

		Finance- 2013 FIre Fund Budget Amendment Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Finance Mary Holland


Approval of staff's request to accept an Adult Felony Drug Court Grant Award in the amount of $152,711.00, and to authorize the 


Chairman to sign the grant application and any related documentation contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


This award is made under the Accountability Courts State of Georgia Grant program.  The purpose of the Accountability Court Grants 


program is to make grants to local courts and judicial circuits to establish specialty courts or dockets to address offenders arrested for 


drug charges, or mental health issues. 


 


This award includes $143,976.00 for the Fiscal Year 2013 grant application and supplemental funding of $8,735.00 to be allocated for 


designer drug testing and treatment as required by House Bill1176. 


 


The grant program is subject to the administrative rules established by the Criminal Justice Coordinating Council. 


 


No matching funds are required for acceptance of this grant.


Approval of staff's request to accept an Adult Felony Drug Court Grant Award in the amount of $152,711.00, and to authorize the 


Chairman to sign the grant application and any related documentation contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


This is an increase to revenues and expenditures, no impact to the bottom line.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Consent11/15/2012













		Finance- CJC Adult Felony Drug Court Grant Agenda Request File

		Finance- CJC Adult Felony Drug Court Grant Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Finance Mary S. Holland


Approval of staff's recommendation to accept a grant from the Criminal Justice Coordinating Council's Accountability Courts / Grant 


Department, in the amount of $5,439.00, that has been awarded to the Griffin Judicial Circuit Drug Court, and to authorize the Chairman 


to sign the grant documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


The purpose of the Accountability Court Grants program is to make grants to local courts and judicial circuits to establish courts or 


dockets to address offenders arrested for drug charges or mental health issues.  This grant program is subject to the administrative rules 


established by the Criminal Justice Coordinating Council. 


 


The Griffin Judicial Circuit Drug Court has been awarded a subgrant in the amount of $5,439.00.  There are no matching funds 


associated with this request. 


 


This grant will be used to pay for a partial month expense of the Drug Court's treatment provider, Turning Point. 


 


Approval of staff's recommendation to accept a grant from the Criminal Justice Coordinating Council's Accountability Courts / Grant 


Department, in the amount of $5,439.00, that has been awarded to the Griffin Judicial Circuit Drug Court, and to authorize the Chairman 


to sign the grant documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, November 15, 2012





























		Finance- CJC Grant Agenda Request File

		Finance- CJC Grant Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Fire and EMS M. Allen McCullough


Approval of staff's request to transfer $4,532.50 from the Warning Siren Fund Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Account into the Public 


Safety & Emergency Management Account for the repair of Warning Siren No. 25 located near the intersection of Highway 74 and 


Kedron Drive in Peachtree City.


Warning Siren No. 25, located near the intersection of Highway 74 and Kedron Drive in Peachtree City, has been damaged by a lightning 


strike.  The digital voice board, logic control board, and the power amps were removed and sent out for repair.  It has since been 


determined that these components were damaged beyond repair, and the estimated cost for new parts and installation is $4,532.50. 


 


Funding for this repair is available in the 2013 Warning Siren Fund CIP Account.  $45,000 was budgeted for the siren and installation.  


The current Purchase Order issued for the siren is $35,696.00.  An additional $1,480.00 was used to purchase replacement batteries.  


This left a remaining balance of $7,832.00.     


 


Should the Board approve staff's request to transfer funds, the fund balance in the Warning Siren Fund CIP Account will be $3,291.50. 


Approval of staff's request to transfer $4,532.50 from the Warning Siren Fund Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Account 


(34230930-54520 3930B) into the Public Safety & Emergency Management Account (10030930-522232) for the repair of Warning Siren 


No. 25 located near the intersection of Highway 74 and Kedron Drive in Peachtree City.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, November 15, 2012













		Fire and EMS- Warning Siren Agenda Request File

		Fire and EMS- Warning Siren Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Public Works Phil Mallon


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into Contract ID No. C38931-12-000-0 with the Georgia Department of Transportation 
(GDOT) for the resurfacing of 6.47 miles of County roads (GDOT Project No. S014261-PR), and authorization for the Chairman to sign 
the contract contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


Contract ID No. C38931-12-000-0 is for Fayette County's 2012 Local Maintenance & Improvement Grant (LMIG) application.  Under this 
contract, the GDOT will reimburse Fayette County for materials, including recycled asphalt concrete, bituminous tack coat and striping, 
up to $465,402.21.  Fayette County is responsible for labor and equipment.  All work must be completed by September 30, 2013. 
 
The following roads are eligible for reimbursement under the 2012 LMIG:  Blanche Drive (0.25 miles), Camelot Drive (1.54 miles), King 
Arthur Court (0.12 miles), Rising Star Road (3.78 miles), Sir Lancelot Court (0.08 miles), Summerville Drive (0.45 miles), and Winterthur 
Court (0.09 miles). 
 
Staff's cost estimate for materials is $464,000.00.  Actual costs will be dependent on the Asphalt / Cement Price Index at the time the 
work is performed. 
 
A copy of the GDOT Contract is available for review upon request.  It is not posted on-line because of the file's size and format.  Please 
contact the Commissioners' Office at 770-305-5200 for additional information.


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into Contract ID No. C38931-12-000-0 with the Georgia Department of Transportation 
(GDOT) for the resurfacing of 6.47 miles of County roads (GDOT Project No. S014261-PR), and authorization for the Chairman to sign 
the contract contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


Fayette County is responsible for providing all labor and equipment necessary for completion of the work, plus any material costs in 
excess of $465,402.21.  Funds for this type of work are provided for annually in the Road Department's budget.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


A copy of the GDOT Contract is available for review upon request.  It is not posted on-line because of the file's size and format.  Please 
contact the Commissioners' Office at 770-305-5200 for additional information.


ConsentThursday, November 15, 2012








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Public Works Phil Mallon


Consideration of a proposed 2013 Local Maintenance & Improvement Grant (LMIG) project list for unincorporated Fayette County, and 


authorization for the Chairman to sign the LMIG Application and related documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


The Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) has made changes to its LMIG program that allow for greater flexibility.  Details of the 


program are provided in the LMIG Guidelines and Rules packet provided as back-up to this agenda request.  Fayette County's formula 


amount for 2013 is $549,106.95.   


 


Per guidance from GDOT, County staff have prepared a draft project list in excess of this amount.  The project list, attached, suggests 15 


to 30 percent of the grant money be allocated to preconstruction engineering (PE) and the remainder on asphalt resurfacing.  A 30 


percent local match is required for all LMIG money. 


 


Fayette County's final LMIG application and project list must be submitted to GDOT no later than January 1, 2013.  A check for the LMIG 


amount, up to $549,106.95, will then be sent to Fayette County.  


Approval of the 2013 Local Maintenance & Improvement Grant (LMIG) project list for unincorporated Fayette County, and authorization 


for the Chairman to sign the LMIG Application and related documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


A 30 percent match is required for LMIG funds.  For resurfacing, the match is available from Road Department's Asphalt & Tack and 


Technical Services line items.  The match for design services would be requested from contingency.  


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


No


Not Applicable Yes


Finance - Can we identify the amount that would be needed from fund balance (contingency)?


New BusinessThursday, November 15, 2012







Length


No. Road Name (miles) Termini Type of Work Total LMIG Local Schedule


1 Tyrone Road (CR035800) 4.3 SR 74 to SR 54


Scoping study to identify specific 


operational and safety improvements 


along the corridor to support future 


requests for federal aid.


$104,000 $80,000 $24,000


Let contract for scoping 


services in spring 2013; 


complete work within 12 


months


2
Creekside Drive (proposed 


new road)
0.8


SR 54 at Yorktown Dr. to 


First Manassas Road
PE for proposed new road $208,000 $160,000 $48,000


Let contract for design 


services in spring 2013; 


complete work within 18 


months


3 North Fayette Drive 1.00 SR 314 to dead end Resurfacing $82,987 $63,836 $19,151 CY 2013


4 Wilmington Lane 1.00
North Fayette Drive to 


Princeton Trace
Resurfacing $79,795 $61,381 $18,414 CY 2013


5 Princeton Trace 0.60 dead end to dead end Resurfacing $54,261 $41,739 $12,522 CY 2013


6 North Fayette Court 0.40
North Fayette Drive to 


dead end
Resurfacing $35,110 $27,008 $8,102 CY 2013


7 Gloucester Court 0.10
Wilmington Lane to dead 


end
Resurfacing $11,171 $8,593 $2,578 CY 2013


8 Hampton Way 0.10
North Fayette Drive to 


Wilmington Lane
Resurfacing $7,980 $6,138 $1,841 CY 2013


9 Seay Road 1.30 SR 92 to SR 85 Resurfacing $74,905 $57,619 $17,286 CY 2013


10 Ebenezer Church Road 0.89
Redwine Road to Lester 


Road
Resurfacing $51,281 $39,447 $11,834 CY 2013


11 White Oak Way 1.10
SR 314 to New Hope 


Road
Resurfacing $87,775 $67,519 $20,256 CY 2013


12 Derby Drive 0.70
Kingswood Drive to Essex 


Circle
Resurfacing $36,342 $27,955 $8,387 CY 2013


2013 Local Maintenance & Improvement Grant (LMIG) Program


Fayette County Project List


Project Costs







Length


No. Road Name (miles) Termini Type of Work Total LMIG Local Schedule


2013 Local Maintenance & Improvement Grant (LMIG) Program


Fayette County Project List


Project Costs


13 Ridge Way 0.30
Park Hill Lane to dead 


end
Resurfacing $15,575 $11,981 $3,594 CY 2013


14 Acorn Ridge 0.40
Mornings Springs Walk 


to dead end
Resurfacing $20,767 $15,974 $4,792 CY 2013


15 Deer Forest Road 0.60 Deer Forest Trail to SR 54 Resurfacing $31,150 $23,962 $7,188 CY 2013


16 Royal Ridge Way 1.00 SR 85 South to dead end Resurfacing $51,917 $39,936 $11,981 CY 2013


17 Hampstead Manor 0.50 SR 314 to Heath Way Resurfacing $25,958 $19,968 $5,990 CY 2013


18 Heath Way 0.60
Hampstead Manor to 


dead end
Resurfacing $31,150 $23,962 $7,188 CY 2013


19 Arnold Road 0.70
Ebenezer Church Road to 


dead end
Resurfacing $36,342 $27,955 $8,387 CY 2013


$1,046,465 $804,973 $241,492


1.  Contact person:  Phil Mallon, Fayette County Public Works, 770-320-6010 or pmallon@fayettecountyga.gov 


2.  Fayette's formula amount for the 2013 LMIG Program is $549,106.95.


3.  All "resurfacing" cost estimates include material costs for patching, asphalt cement and tack.  Additionally, 


     some projects include costs for milling and/or striping, as determined appropriate by the Road Department.  


     A table showing this breakdown can be provided, upon request.  







                                                    Revised 9/10/2012 


Page 1 
 


GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
LOCAL MAINTENANCE & IMPROVEMENT GRANT (LMIG)  


APPLICATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013 
TYPE OR PRINT LEGIBLY.  ALL SECTIONS MUST BE COMPLETED. 


 
 
All Applications must be submitted by the Local Governing Official to the Georgia Department of Transportation, Office of 
Local Grants, 600 West Peachtree Street NW, Atlanta, Georgia 30308.   
 
   


LOCAL GOVERNMENT INFORMATION 


 
Date of Application: _______________________________ 
 
Name of local government: ___________________________________________________________________________ 
Address: __________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Contact Person and Title: _____________________________________________________________________________ 
Contact Person’s Phone Number: ______________________________________________________________________ 
Contact Person’s Fax Number: ________________________________________________________________________ 
Contact Person’s Email: ______________________________________________________________________________  
  
Is the Priority List attached?  Yes  No 
 
 


LOCAL GOVERNMENT AFFIDAVIT AND CERTIFICATION 
 
 


I, _____________________________________ (Name), the ______________________________ (Title), on behalf of 
_________________________________ (local government), who being duly sworn do swear that the information given 
herein is true to the best of his/her knowledge and belief.  Local Government swears and certifies that it has read and 
understands the LMIG General Guidelines and Rules and that it has complied with and will comply with the same.   
 
Local government further swears and certifies that it has read and understands the regulations for the Georgia Planning 
Act of 1989 (O.C.G.A. § 45-12-200, et seq.), Service Delivery Strategy Act (O.C.G.A. § 36-70-20, et seq.), and the Local 
Government Budgets and Audits Act (O.C.G.A. 36-81-1 et seq.) and will comply in full with said provisions. Local 
government further swears and certifies that the roads or sections of roads described and shown on the local government’s 
Project List are dedicated public roads and are part of the Public Road System in said county/city. Local government 
further swears and certifies that it complied with federal and/or state environmental protection laws  and at the completion 
of the project(s), it met the match requirements as stated in the Transportation Investment ACT (TIA). 
 
Further, the local government shall be responsible for any claim, damage, loss or expense that is attributable to negligent 
acts, errors, or omissions related to the designs, drawings, specifications, work and other services furnished by or on 
behalf of the local government pursuant to this Application (“Loss”). To the extent provided by law, the local government 
further agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the DEPARTMENT and the State of Georgia from all suits or claims that 
may arise from said Loss. 


 
 







                                                    Revised 9/10/2012 


Page 2 
 


GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
LOCAL MAINTENANCE & IMPROVEMENT GRANT (LMIG) 


APPLICATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013 
 


LOCAL GOVERNMENT AFFIDAVIT AND CERTIFICATION 
 
 


If the local government fails to comply with these General Guidelines and Rules, or fails to comply with its Application and 
Certification, or fails to cooperate with the auditor(s) or fails to maintain and retain sufficient records, the DEPARTMENT may, at 
its discretion, prohibit the local government from participating in the LMIG program in the future and may pursue any available 
legal remedy to obtain reimbursement of the LMIG funds. Furthermore, if in the estimation of the DEPARTMENT, a roadway or 
bridge shows evidence of failure(s) due to poor workmanship, the use of substandard materials, or the failure to follow the 
required design and construction guidelines as set forth herein, the Department may pursue any available legal remedy to obtain 
reimbursement of the allocated LMIG funds or prohibit local government from participating in the LMIG program until such time 
as corrections are made to address the deficiencies or reimbursement is made.   


Local Government:       _____________________________ 
          E-Verify Number 


 
____________________________ (Signature)    Sworn to and subscribed before me, 
 
____________________________ (Print)    This _____ day of__ _______, 20___. 
Mayor / Commission Chairperson     In the presence of: 
____________________________ (Date)     
         NOTARY PUBLIC 
SEAL:         __________________________ 


My Commission Expires:  
 


 


 


 
FOR GDOT USE ONLY 


The local government’s Application is hereby granted and the amount allocated to the local government is 
___________________.  Such allocation must be spent on any or all of those projects listed in the Project List. 
 
  
This _________ day of ___________, 20___. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Terry L Gable  
Local Grants Administrator 
 





















		Public Works- 2013 LMIG Project List Agenda Request File

		Public Works- 2013 LMIG Project List Backup

		LMIG Draft Project List

		Binder1

		LMIG Application & Affidavit

		2013 LMIG 9.7.12

		Guidelines-rules rev10-18-12














COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Parks and Recreation Darryl Hicks


Discussion of the results of Phase II of the segmented approach for Fayette County's Parks and Recreations Needs Assessment.


In 2003, the Board of Commissioners adopted the Fayette County Parks and Recreation Needs Assessment. The Needs Assessment 


has been used to guide the County in planning, developing and maintaining Fayette County's parks since its adoption. To continue to 


adequately plan for the future and to ensure the Assessment is still representative of the community, the Needs Assessment needs to be 


updated. In September 2011, the Board of Commissioners approved Phase I of the Needs Assessment which included a Parks and 


Recreation Needs Assessment Survey. Survey results were compiled and made available for the Board of Commissioners review and 


comment in April 2012. 


 


In June 2012, the Board of Commissioners approved Phase II of the segmented approach which consisted of setting the Vision and 


Goals Element of the Needs Assessment. As part of the process, two meetings were held with key stakeholders to obtain input and make 


recommendations of visions, goals and strategies for the Parks and Recreation Department.   


 


A summary of the input from these meetings is now available for the Board of Commissioners review and comment.


No action is requested at this time.  The purpose of this request is to submit the results of Phase II of the Parks and Recreation Needs 


Assessment.


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, June 28, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Old BusinessThursday, November 15, 2012







1 Summary of Input from Fayette Planning Meetings on August 18 and September 15, 2012 


for Parks, Recreation, Leisure and Fitness.  If questions contact Anita Godbee, Director, Parks and 


Recreation Department, Fayette County, 770-716-4321 


 


Summary of Input Meetings on August 18 and September 15, 2012 


For Fayette County Parks, Recreation, Leisure and Fitness Planning 


 


These meetings were sponsored by the Fayette County Parks and Recreation Department on 


behalf of all governmental and organizational entities in the county with an interest in 


collaboratively planning for the future of parks, recreation, leisure and fitness programs and 


services for the benefit of the entire county.  The purpose of the two planning meetings was to 


create input and recommendations to present to the appropriate governing bodies and 


organizational entities. 


The tasks for these meetings were to: 


 come to agreement on a preliminary Vision statement for these programs and services 


 draft goal statements in keeping with that Vision, the recent needs assessment survey of 


Fayette County citizens and the experience and perspective of all those attending the 


meeting 


 discuss and document possible major strategies or action steps to implement the draft 


goals, if they are agreed upon going forward with this planning process 


 discuss and document possible obstacles and challenges for each goal 


 Discuss possible collaboration opportunities  


Vision Statement Drafts Created in This Meeting 


Version A:  Moving forward together to provide recreation, leisure and fitness opportunities to 


foster a high quality of life for all ages in Fayette County. 


Version B:  Moving forward together to provide recreation, leisure and fitness opportunities to 


foster a high quality of life for all ages in Fayette County.  These services are recognized and 


appreciated as valued county assets that are broadly enjoyed and supported by the community for 


recreation and social interaction. 


Draft Goals, Strategies/Action Steps and Issues, Challenges or Obstacles to Address  


The group created priority goals based on the needs assessment survey results, their knowledge 


and the Vision statement.  They were to consider factors such as impact, cost, demand for 


services and programs and other issues they surfaced in discussion.  Possible major action 


steps/milestones/strategies are included after each goal as well as possible challenges or 


obstacles associated with that goal.  These inputs are intended to provide some traction for the 


ongoing planning effort.  They are a starting point, not a comprehensive list of everything that 


should be considered.  (TBD below = date to be determined)  These goals are not in any priority 


order, with the exception of Goal 1, step A which should be addressed first. 







2 Summary of Input from Fayette Planning Meetings on August 18 and September 15, 2012 


for Parks, Recreation, Leisure and Fitness.  If questions contact Anita Godbee, Director, Parks and 


Recreation Department, Fayette County, 770-716-4321 


 


1. Put into place the necessary structures to ensure collaborative, comprehensive 


ongoing planning for all major aspects of programs and services county-wide in the 


areas of parks,  recreation, leisure and fitness programs, activities and services.  


Major actions/strategies include: 


 


A. Create a county-wide intergovernmental commission to discuss recreation, 


leisure and fitness opportunities (recommend to be done by 6/31/13).  Create 


an inter-governmental agreement laying out exactly how the agreed upon 


goals can not only be met, but sustained into the future of Fayette County. 


 


B. Explore all funding possibilities to meet the needs of parks, recreation, leisure 


and fitness opportunities, including, but not limited to taxes, splost, bonds, 


corporate sponsors, grants, special issue funding like bike friendly, private 


donations (be creative for example in memoriam or live tribute), usage fees, 


etc.   


 


C. Develop an organized system of parks and recreation facilities that will make 


structured/active as well as unstructured/passive recreation accessible to all 


county residents.  This goal should include selecting future park locations 


throughout the County for regional, community and neighborhood park 


facilities. 


 


D. Improve the condition of existing recreation facilities to a consistent and 


desirable standard of quality. 


 


E. Plan for effective ongoing management of all facilities, programs and 


services. 


 


F. Plan for cost-effective maintenance, including long-term replacement like 


HVAC, to provide safe, secure, convenient and pleasurable use of all 


properties and facilities. 


 


G. Plan for effective ongoing marketing and communication about what‟s 


available.  For example, expand marketing of Adult leisure and recreational 


activities.  The survey shows there is a lack of knowledge about available 


Adult programs and activities.  


 


H. Plan for volunteer use including recruitment, management, recognition, etc. 


 


I. Conduct a regular Needs Assessment every 3 to 5 years re: parks, recreation, 


leisure and fitness needs and changing trends in Fayette County. 







3 Summary of Input from Fayette Planning Meetings on August 18 and September 15, 2012 


for Parks, Recreation, Leisure and Fitness.  If questions contact Anita Godbee, Director, Parks and 


Recreation Department, Fayette County, 770-716-4321 


 


2. Create 3 new walking trails and 2 new bike trails by TBD.  (This responds to top 


desires in survey results, it‟s low cost to create and maintain and could be done on 


existing properties.)  Major action steps/milestones could include:  


 


 A.  Determine if the walking and biking trails should be utilized for connectivity 


 or just fitness. 


B. Create a master plan as to where trails should be located. 


C. Create a time table or phased approach as to implementation of each of the 


various trails. 


D. Determine costs 


E. Secure funding for implementation of trails. 


F. Secure land or right of way if needed. 


G. Begin construction. 


H. Marketing to the community both to get funding and to promote the trails 


once they are completed.  Some ribbon cutting ceremonies would generate 


positive publicity. 


 


Issues, Challenges or Obstacles to Creating Additional Walking and Biking Trails 


Save money. Do the right planning and construction up front to encourage all the ultimate 


uses immediately.  Plan ahead. What is the ultimate goal? Is it exclusively for one use in 


one location? Should it eventually be interconnected with other facilities, path networks, 


throughout a city, etc?  Don't put in a simple walking path that in a few years will have to 


widened to accommodate walking, running and biking, then shortly after paved and 


widened to accommodate golf carts.  Remember, the walking path of today may be on 


private or other non-public property that will have to be bought, or never available, for 


expanded usage. 


Trails could be placed in complexes (sports, parks, schools, etc.) that are already in place, 


which takes away what would have been the biggest issue which is finding land to build 


these and funding money to purchase the land.  


 


This is a low cost action point. Walking trails can exist alongside biking trails. If the 


entire County can work towards gaining Bike Friendly Status, then funding is available 


through Grants.  


 


Lack of political support and advocacy would be an obstacle. 


 


Securing the necessary funding needed for implementation. 


 







4 Summary of Input from Fayette Planning Meetings on August 18 and September 15, 2012 


for Parks, Recreation, Leisure and Fitness.  If questions contact Anita Godbee, Director, Parks and 


Recreation Department, Fayette County, 770-716-4321 


 


If trails are for connectivity, determining the best route to meet the county-wide 


recreation needs. 


 


Securing land or right of way if needed.  


 


“How‟s it going to be paid for?”  The public appears to be anti-tax, anti-SPLOST, even 


somewhat anti-government.  It comes back to good marketing, establishing a believable 


need, mobilizing those in favor of spending resources on what they will use, and 


generally selling the project/s.   


 


The entire county will need to work together on this with a special committee heading 


this up. This committee will need the skills and resources to search for available grants 


from the state as well as donations from other organizations like Running Clubs, Biking 


Groups, Local businesses, etc.  


 


 Walking and Biking trails are probably the easiest to designate but should not be confined 


 to being around an existing facility. We do want nature trails too.   


 Update from the City of Fayetteville on current related efforts.  The City of Fayetteville is 


 currently addressing the sidewalk and hiking trails. We are extending the sidewalk from 


 downtown out to the Waterfall by the end of this year or early next year depending on 


 how soon the contracts can be struck. We‟ve turned over management of the 300 acres at 


 the end of Burch Road known as the PK Dickson property to the Southern Conservancy. 


 They are making plans and raising funds to build trails, but as they are a charitable 


 organization dependent on donations, it is hard to fix a definite date. 


 


 With nearly zero residential development happening now it is hard to get things like 


 Heritage Park built, which was a “gift” from the developer. That forces us to look for 


 more creative means to raise the necessary money; bake sales probably won't quite cut it. 


 


3. Add playgrounds to 2 to 4 existing parks/facilities by TBD. 


 


 Create a master plan as to where and what kind of playgrounds should be installed. 


 Prioritize parks based on ease of addition and perceived need. 


 Draw up plans 


 Price the necessary equipment 


 Calculate any cost savings by building 4 versus 3 or 2 playgrounds.    


 Create a time table for phased approach as to implementation. 


 Develop additional maintenance plans as needed 


 Determine initial costs and ongoing operational/maintenance costs 







5 Summary of Input from Fayette Planning Meetings on August 18 and September 15, 2012 


for Parks, Recreation, Leisure and Fitness.  If questions contact Anita Godbee, Director, Parks and 


Recreation Department, Fayette County, 770-716-4321 


 


 Develop political support and advocacy 


 Secure the funding for initial installation as well as operational cost.  (MOMS club 


one resource for this.) 


 Site prep and equipment installation 


 


Issues, Challenges or Obstacles to Adding These Playgrounds 


 


Deciding on what playground features to install  


 


Planning for areas of shade from the sun 


 


Ensuring adequate parking 


 


Securing the necessary funding needed for initial installation as well as operational costs.   


 


Choosing the appropriate locations so people will be encouraged to use these 


playgrounds.  


 


Budgeting for ongoing maintenance so they remain safe and desirable.  


 


 “Please” or “Not” in “my backyard.  Some neighborhoods might want the expansion of 


playgrounds; some might not. 


 


Type of playground – toddler vs. older kids  


 


Lack of political support and advocacy 


 


Selection of location - Which recreation areas/priority? 


 


ADA compliance 


 


Liability 


 


4. Build a multi-purpose facility that includes track, indoor swimming, multi-purpose 


rooms and trails by TBD.  (There was much discussion on this goal.  Here are those 


comments.) 


   


When looking at the survey results, a multi-use indoor sports facility with excellent gym 


facilities was one of the top 5 items chosen in the survey that people would like to see 


created or expanded. A well conceived and designed multi-use facility could cover needs 







6 Summary of Input from Fayette Planning Meetings on August 18 and September 15, 2012 


for Parks, Recreation, Leisure and Fitness.  If questions contact Anita Godbee, Director, Parks and 


Recreation Department, Fayette County, 770-716-4321 


 


in many areas of social, recreational, fitness and leisure needs and address aspects of 


overall well-being for county citizens.   


 


Multi- purpose is the way to go. The more amenities a facility offers the more attractive it 


becomes. This will also help create more revenue outlets through impact fees which in 


turn will help offset the cost of operating the swimming portion of the facility. Multi-


purpose rooms would be important to include. 


 


Swimming was also a strong need as expressed by the survey results.  There‟s no county-


wide swimming facility and all ages could benefit from it.  There may be an opportunity 


to use a closed school as the facility base which could be centrally located, could reduce 


cost of construction, solve the restrooms and parking issues, help the community and 


school board by purchasing the closed school.  A swimming facility could be used for 


competitive swimming, lessons, sports, recreation, fitness water aerobics and therapeutic 


purposes.   


Location will be a complex discussion with strong opinions and desires depending on 


where people live.  Everyone wants it convenient to them. We should keep in mind that 


the location that turns out to be the most convenient for the most people, considering both 


current and projected population density in various areas of the county, may not be 


centrally located.  Some serious thought needs to be put into this issue. 


One opinion was that we should evaluate if it would significantly cut costs to only    


address the fitness and therapeutic type swimming facility and would that best serve the 


needs of the citizens. Possibly in this scenario, encourage more use of the PTC pool for 


recreational purposes.  


An alternate view on the cost of indoor pools was this: Indoor pools are very expensive to 


operate. The Peachtree City pool does not come close to paying for itself.   Saying a 


smaller pool will be far less expensive is really not accurate. You still will have to pay 


millions for a permanent enclosure (I would never recommend the bubble system to 


anyone). There still has to be dehumidification, water filtration, water recirculation and 


other systems, plus all the maintenance and other associated costs.  The smaller the pool 


the fewer the people and uses that can be accommodated. 


Here‟s another participant‟s view.  I like the multi-purpose facility idea, because overall 


cost of construction and maintenance should be less (only one parking lot, etc. etc.), 


staffing costs should be less and overall utilization of the facility should be greater. If 


moms, grandparents too for that matter, can drop off the kids for some supervised activity 


while they go for a swim it should lead to higher utilization of a multi-use facility than 


just having a swimming pool by itself. It seems logical to me that the more features we 







7 Summary of Input from Fayette Planning Meetings on August 18 and September 15, 2012 


for Parks, Recreation, Leisure and Fitness.  If questions contact Anita Godbee, Director, Parks and 


Recreation Department, Fayette County, 770-716-4321 


 


can pack into one facility, the more utilization we will have of that facility. If we had to 


build it in stages, we should have a master plan that would make sure that we didn't build 


something that could not be expanded upon or added to later.  


 


Swim facilities are expensive to build and to maintain.  The cost of maintaining pools 


over time is very high. Unless we have a great financial plan in place the other facets of 


the facility will suffer financially.  


 


Swimming v Splash parks: Narrow down the need for this activity. Pools are money pits! 


Visit Clayton Parks and Rec. and get a better perspective on their costs for their pool 


maintenance.  


 


We can consider creating a multipurpose facility that does not include swimming.  There 


are strong opinions on both sides of this issue. 


 


 Major milestones/large action steps that would have to be addressed in order to 


 implement a multi-purpose facility  


 Determine best location for such a facility 


 Determine what amenities will be offered at this facility 


 Explore the possibility of collaborating with the Board of Education to utilize a 


closed school facility as a multi-purpose facility where upfront funding needs might 


be minimal  


 Identify possible facilities to purchase if a closed school is not an option. 


 Create plan for new site and facility to explore that option- building design, plans and 


construction costs 


 Do feasibility study on all options and compare them 


 Determine operational costs and how they would be funded on an ongoing basis once 


facility is operational. 


 Secure funding to purchase land, construct facility or retrofit an existing facility. 


 Begin construction work or refurbishment.   


Issues, Challenges and Obstacles Associated with a Multi-purpose Facility 


 


Determine whether or not to include a pool in the facility and, if so, what kind. 


 


Determine the right location. 


 


Here‟s one example of a participants thoughts on how this might unfold.  Realistically, 


this might take till Jan 2016 to fund and build. First would be site visits to some other 







8 Summary of Input from Fayette Planning Meetings on August 18 and September 15, 2012 


for Parks, Recreation, Leisure and Fitness.  If questions contact Anita Godbee, Director, Parks and 


Recreation Department, Fayette County, 770-716-4321 


 


facilities to see how others have done this and learn the problems they have had to solve 


(Gwinnett Co has some very nice pool facilities, but I'm not sure if they are multi-use) by 


March 31, 2013. Second would be to decide on a location by June 30, 2013. Third would 


be drawing up at least preliminary plans by Aug 31, 2013. Fourth would be securing 


funding, which would probably need to be public and private. Private funding from 


advertizing, donations, memberships, grants, etc. Public funding would likely be by way 


of a SPLOST which might push the vote till the Nov 2014 elections, which could make 


the deal not doable by January 2015, but assuming funding is achieved, ground breaking 


by May 1, 2015 


 


This goal is going to require a major marketing effort to bring about a public “buy-in.”  A 


perceived value by a majority of Fayette County residents will be needed to approve 


many of the possible funding options.  This will be difficult should the economic 


downturn continue (or not abate quickly enough), and the current anti-tax environment 


prevail.   


 


Gaining the support of influential figures in the community will be necessary to make the 


most out of this kind of facility. Without everyone‟s support, it will not be what it can 


and needs to be.   


 


Several dynamics can suppress or accelerate funding.  Everyone needs to be on board. 


Opinion will move the funding in either direction depending on what support is given.  


Finding the appropriate centralized location for such a facility 


 


Repurposing existing buildings may be more expensive than building new.   


 


Consider Marketing and Sponsorship committees. Partnering with our community ( e.g. 


Delta and Piedmont Hospital) long term to keep costs down for our taxpayer.   


 


Securing initial funding as well as operational funding.  Future sustainable funding is the 


biggest obstacle because it will be VERY difficult to survive on impact fees alone. 


 


If a closed school facility can be obtained through a collaborative agreement, evaluate 


whether or not the facility can feasibly and financially be refurbished into a quality 


facility that the citizens can be proud of. 


 


Space and land on existing facilities may already provide what is needed to begin 


construction of buildings to house “multi-purpose” activities.  


 


Location and costs are our major obstacles. If this were to be a Tournament venue for the 


Southside, would we have enough to cover and maintain this facility? The location of this 







9 Summary of Input from Fayette Planning Meetings on August 18 and September 15, 2012 


for Parks, Recreation, Leisure and Fitness.  If questions contact Anita Godbee, Director, Parks and 


Recreation Department, Fayette County, 770-716-4321 


 


facility is key to its success. If we go with the tournament mentality then it needs to be 


close to area hotels, building it on the outskirts of our county will send revenue to 


neighboring counties. Safety and security issues are easier if facility is very central. 


 The question needs to be asked, personal use or a tourism revenue base for our hotels 


and county? Voters need to know direction and how costs will be offset? Educating the 


taxpayer, being transparent is a challenge.   


 


Consider “phased” development that would initially focus on development of an all-


weather (year round) recreation facility that would first work to develop an aquatic 


education and therapeutic facility and eventually a full recreational swimming facility 


that could support individual and organized aquatic events.       


 


 


Opportunities for Collaboration That the Group Identified for Provision of All 


Services in Recreation, Leisure and Fitness  


 


 Private clubs, gyms, golf courses etc. 


 Churches 


 Neighborhood Associations 


 Private Developers and Corporations 


 Chamber of Commerce or Community and Visitors Bureau 


  Possible help from schools – swim teams at a swim center; cross country teams on 


walking, bike trails. 


 Possible facilities for specialty exercise/fitness groups – boot camp groups, senior 


walking groups, day cares.   


 


LOST funds.   If chosen as a funding option, promote more awareness about this process 


as well as the end result and how the funds will be used by each entity. People need to be 


informed so they have a better understanding of how these funds are distributed.  


 


Collaboration between the cities in Fayette County will be a large benefit.  Right now, it 


seems that each city parks and recreation department is only concerned about what is 


going on in their city alone and almost „competing‟ if you will among each other. If they 


can collaborate to create and meet the needs of those in each community, it would best 


benefit everyone- from the employees to the civilians, as duplication of work would be 


cut down. With Fayette Senior Services‟ and Peachtree City‟s recent partnership being 


developed (with the Gathering Place), our biggest problem has been getting everyone on 


board that these are not two separate organizations, but one to best serve those at hand.  It 


takes some time to move past this, but it is improving and the programming, attendance 







10 Summary of Input from Fayette Planning Meetings on August 18 and September 15, 2012 


for Parks, Recreation, Leisure and Fitness.  If questions contact Anita Godbee, Director, Parks and 


Recreation Department, Fayette County, 770-716-4321 


 


and success has skyrocketed in return. The county could have the same results with more 


teamwork and greatly cut down on duplication of work.  


 


Regarding the multi-purpose facility, collaboration with the BOE around the school 


closure properties might benefit both entities.   


Build on success, expertise and activities (individual and organized) already existing at 


various County recreation areas.   


Develop County recreational/leisure activity at one or two “hub‟ recreation areas and 


export/make accessible to other recreation areas. 


Conduct organized activities/events at recreation areas to build and showcase activity 


interest. 


The school board and the recreation department could coordinate more to better utilize 


the school facilities while those are not in use for school facilities. 


I am loath to suggest another level of governmental bureaucracy, but perhaps a 


“recreation authority” (composed of members from each municipality and the county at 


large) that could manage all recreational facilities in the county would be in order. (See 


Goal 1, item A.) 


 


  What Are the Obstacles to Forming Collaborations and Partnerships in This Area 


of Parks, Recreation, Leisure and Fitness? 


 


 Operational cost of facility owner. 


 True equality in funding and programming needs for all parties who are collaborating 


 Private or political interest 


 Funding and working together by the cities within Fayette County 


 Perceived competition among specific groups for financial resources 


 Making sure everyone has the county wide citizens in mind and not what might be 


best for their communities 


 Convincing each entity that it could be beneficial 


 All parties feeling a sense of equity in terms of ownership and funding 


 Poor communication between various groups; not recognizing a common ground 


 Age group distrust 


 Lack of political support and advocacy 


 Function of location – Why collaborate if have facilities/services? 


 Future funding 


 Current County budget shortfalls 







11 Summary of Input from Fayette Planning Meetings on August 18 and September 15, 2012 


for Parks, Recreation, Leisure and Fitness.  If questions contact Anita Godbee, Director, Parks and 


Recreation Department, Fayette County, 770-716-4321 


 


 Turf wars and differing ideas of what would provide the most benefit to the 


community. 


Most people do not have a full understanding of where tax monies are going and how 


they are being spent.  This, along with other sources of funding, causes each entity to put 


up their barriers trying to protect what they have. Determining who is part of these 


collaborations and who is responsible for forming various partnerships is a large issue. 


 


Moving past comfort zones will be the biggest challenge. All of our areas of expertise 


and departments are used to working individually. Compromise, listening and discussing 


with open minds is the most important aspect to working together and that is going to be 


the first thing that needs to be addressed in this continuation.  


 


 We do not have a full understanding of how the taxpayers‟ funds are distributed amongst 


the “players”.  This does cause conflict. More transparency is needed here 


 


Other Concerns or Questions about Long Term Planning for Recreation, Leisure 


and Fitness Services and Programs for the Citizens of Fayette County 


 Don't go for the big ticket item first. Go for the smaller projects that give something to 


 as many people as possible within the county. Build the support and enthusiasm.  


Recreation budgets are shrinking all over the country. Each community is tightening their 


belts and operating on much leaner budgets. Overall I don‟t think Fayette County as a 


whole has done a good job in long term planning and it‟s only going to get more difficult 


in our current financial situation.  


 


How do we keep the momentum going on the interest in expanding and enhancing Parks 


and Recreation services and amenities?  How can we better enlist the support of both the 


youth and senior citizens?   


 


I feel we have failed to plan for the long haul financially. In moving forward I would like 


to see 5-10 year maintenance costs and   money put aside for a rainy day. We also need to 


do a better job of educating the public regarding the costs of these services. Their taxes 


do pay for some of this, but nominal fees will be assessed to maintain the high standard 


of service they have come to expect from the county. If we do our due diligence on all 


projects, there should be no surprises.  


 


Long term plan should be balanced to address needs of and allocation of priorities and 


resources to: adults and youth, organized and individual activities, each recreation 


area/park, and the county as a whole.  How we will deal with use by surrounding counties 


needs to be addressed. 







12 Summary of Input from Fayette Planning Meetings on August 18 and September 15, 2012 


for Parks, Recreation, Leisure and Fitness.  If questions contact Anita Godbee, Director, Parks and 


Recreation Department, Fayette County, 770-716-4321 


 


Regional or County promotion:  Never promote or advertise a facility as Regional unless 


you are going to generate income from it. Always focus on use by the taxpayers who are 


funding it.   If free and not on their dime, why should anyone outside of Fayette County 


contribute to costs here when they can just use it for free?   Try to never locate anything 


conveniently close to another  county. That will just encourage their usage and discourage 


within the county usage. 


 On the issue of distance to travel:  Seniors want everything very close to where they live. 


 Most are not willing to travel  from, say the Gathering Place, in Peachtree City, to the 


 Senior Center, in Fayetteville, or vice versa.  In Peachtree City, we have those who feel 


 the Gathering Place is too far for them to travel and they want a second center on the 


 north side of town for them.    This also applies to many others as regards the indoor pool 


 as well. They do not want to drive from Fayetteville or north Fayette to Peachtree City. 


 The same would be true for many in Peachtree City if the indoor pool was in 


 Fayetteville. It also applies across the board on all kinds of facilities. People do not 


 want to travel, in general. They want it in their backyard.  So, if not convenient, in their 


 minds, they simply will not travel and will ask their local elected to provide it or put in 


 polls they want it. 


  People are going to have to be educated that costs will never allow everything to be 


 conveniently located for every resident in every part of the county. Some wants could 


 never be justified in cost for more than a single facility for the whole county, if even one 


 could be justified at all.  


We know that green space sells, resulting in higher home prices. I don't know, but 


assume that having nice recreation & leisure facilities would do much the same. Pools are 


very expensive to maintain and operate, but if projections are correct regarding the aged 


population in Fayette County by 2040, we need to be providing leisure and recreation 


facilities that the senior population can utilize and benefit from, in addition to the 


traditional ball fields and such for the kids.  


 


In keeping with Fayette County's reputation for being a premier county, these should be 


state of the art “world class” facilities.  I think a high quality project would be easier to 


sell to the tax payers than an “elcheapo” project. However, if public funding fails for a 


project such as this, I think we should look into doing it with private funding sources.  


 


 





		Recreation- Phase II Needs Assessment Agenda Request File

		Recreation- Phase II Needs Assessment Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Parks and Recreation Commissioner Steve Brown


Consideration of the appointment of Mike Saul to the Post 4 seat of the Fayette County Recreation Commission, for a four four-year term 


which will begin April 1, 2012 and will expire March 31, 2016.


The Fayette County Recreation Commission consists of five persons appointed to four-year terms by the Board of Commissioners. The 


Resolution that creates the Recreation Commission provides that each of the five seats will coincide with those of the members of the 


Board of Commissioners.  It is practice that the Commissioner from the respective district will recommend an appointee to the Board of 


Commissioners. 


 


The Post 4 seat is Commissioner Brown's appointee.  Commissioner Brown issued public notices informing the public of a vacancy on 


the Board, and received several applications from citizens were were interested in serving.   


 


Since Commissioner Brown holds an at-large seat on the Board of Commissioners, he is presenting the name of Mr. Mike Saul as his 


recommendation for appointment.


Approval of the appointment of Mike Saul to the Post 4 seat of the Fayette County Recreation Commission, for a four four-year term 


which will begin April 1, 2012 and will expire March 31, 2016.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, November 15, 2012







APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT
 
Fayette County Recreation Commission
 


Thank you for your interest in being considered for appointment to the Recreation Commission. 


Applicants must be a legal resident of the State of Georgia and have been a resident of Fayette 
County for at least six months prior to the date an application is submitted. Elected officials of 
any govemmental jurisdiction In the County and County employees are not eligible for 
appointment. 


The Recreation Commission is comprised of five members appointed to four-year terms. 
Meetings are held on the second Tuesday of each month, at 7:00 p.m., at 980 Redwine Road, 
Fayetteville, Georgia 30215. Pleasedo not apply if you will be unable to attend a minimum of 
eighty percent (80%) of all meetings. Applicants are encouraged to attend as many Recreation 


'COmmission meetings as poSsIble In an effort to become familiar with the responsibilities of 
the post. 


Pleasetake a few minutes to complete the form and answer the questions on the reverse side 
of this form and return it with a resume, if available, to Floyd Jones, County derk, 140 
Stonewall Avenue, West, Suite 100, Fayetteville, GA 30214 no later than 5:00 p.m. September 
14,2012. 


If you have any questions, please call (770) 305-5102. 


NOTE:Information provided on this form is subject to disclosure as a public record under
 
Georgia Open Records Low.
 


,.. ~.
 


NAME__1'1 JeM ~E:L.
 


 


 


   


     _ 


iJ IS \2012


DateUsi~tif 







How long have you been a resident of Fayette County? 


14 yl...<r 
1.	 Why are you interested in serving on the Recreation Commission? 


~NT/~UE. 1( &~YIC£ To THE.. Coury 
2.	 What qualifications and experience do you possess that would benefit the county's
 


parks and recreation programs? OVE:Q. J0 y~( (;<J>£R..rEric£
 


.N IT--H P"1 t< K5 4~D RE..C~{AT'D"J ~D&Ql\h1s 
3.	 Ust your recent employment experiences to Include name of company and position. 


~P14/~ DUT4 AI~ LIN.E:S 
I 


4.	 Do you have any past experience relating to our parks and recreation programs? If so, 


please describe. YES _p~rr ~'S I {)ot\l 1 A,.N!) \IJ C£ f'~ ItxN-r ~<'5 4f<£i 
Rf..cRt:-'" i'~ &4RQ


-P4$T ~[;)fDENl A"tO V,6.- ~${I ~{ A~4 LTfL£ 
S.	 Are you currently serving on a commissionfboard/authority or in and elected capaCilV"'" IrA 


with any government? No Gu[ 


6.	 Have you attended any Recreation Commission meetings in the past two years and, if 


so, how many? Yes OVE..~ '2..0
 
(
 


7.	 Are you willing to attend seminars or continuing education classes at county expense? 


1~ 
8. ..' What Is your vision of the county's future related to the dutiespf the Recreation
 


Commission? ~~Tii "'riD ~;>~!'fS' I~ OF Qx:Nr'j Rc.c.."it:..4T/0'J4L


~rrrt.S 
~~ 


9.	 Would there be any possible conflict of interest between your employment orvour
 
family and you serving on the Recreation Commission? No
 


10. Are you in any way related to a County Elected Official or County employee? If so,
 


please describe. NQ
 


11.0.5Cp;;ur0':~~~~ityiB~~~'4~ RC~QJ:4T'O'J / he 
12. You have been given a copy of the county's Ethics Ordinance.	 Is there any reason you
 


would not be able to comply with the ordinance? N.o
 



http:Rc.c.."it



		Recreation- Recreation Commission Agenda Request File

		Recreation- Recreation Commission Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Engineering / SPLOST Phil Mallon


Consideration of staff's request to award Bid #850- Westbridge Road Construction, including Bridge over Morning Creek, to the low 


bidder Southeastern Site Development, Inc., in the amount of $1,798,747.29, for the realignment of Westbridge Road and construction of 


a new 180-ft long offset bridge, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


The scope of this project involves the realignment of ±1,600 lf of Westbridge Road and construction of a new 180-ft long offset bridge 


designed to clear-span over existing Morning Creek, avoiding impacts to the existing streambed and surrounding wetland areas.  The 


proposed bridge is located south of its current location.   This work will remove and improve a sharp curve located west of the existing 


bridge.  The existing curve does not meet American Association of State Highway and Transportation Official (AASHTO) road design 


requirements for a 45-mph design speed; however, the proposed road and bridge do meet AASHTO requirements and allows a 45-mph 


speed limit to be posted throughout the corridor. 


 


Invitation were direct mailed to 28 contractors, and, additionally, invitations were extended via the Fayette Daily News, the county's 


website, Georgia Local Government Access Marketplace, and Channel 23.  Five contractors responded to the bid.  The lowest bid, in the 


amount of $1,798,747.29, was submitted by Southeastern Site Development, Inc. which is located in Newnan, Georgia. 


 


The Public Works Department and the Purchasing Department recommends the low bidder for this request.  


Consideration of staff's request to award Bid #850- Westbridge Road Construction, including Bridge over Morning Creek, to the low 


bidder Southeastern Site Development, Inc., in the amount of $1,798,747.29, for the realignment of Westbridge Road and construction of 


a new 180-ft long offset bridge, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract  and other related documents contingent upon the 


County Attorney's review.


Funding for this work is available from Account #321 40220 541210 B-2.


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


New BusinessThursday, November 15, 2012







 


Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov


 
 
 
 
 
 
To:  Jack Krakeel 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  October 22, 2012 
 
Subject: Bid #850 – Westbridge Road construction, including Bridge over Morning Creek 
 
The Purchasing Department issued Invitation to Bid #850 for construction of approximately 1,600 
feet of road on Westbridge Road. Construction will include a new bridge over Morning Creek.  
The bridge will be 180 feet long, with three spans.  It will also include elimination of a sharp curve 
at the west side of the bridge. 
 
Invitations were direct-mailed to 28 contractors.  In addition, invitations were extended via the 
Fayette News, the county website, Georgia Local Government Access Marketplace 
(www.glga.org), and Channel 23.  Five contractors responded to the invitation to bid (please see 
the attached spread sheet). 
 
The lowest bid was submitted by Southeastern Site Development, Inc., in Newnan, Georgia.  
Their total bid was $1,798,747.29.  The Public Works Department recommends this contractor, 
and I support their recommendation. 
 
Attachment 



http://www.glga.org/





NUMBER ITEM


1. 150-1000 Traffic Control – (B-2) $32,900.00 $18,500.00 $12,573.06 $14,180.00 $14,500.00
2. 150-5010 Traffic Control, Portable Impact Attenuator 11,220.00 14,000.00 8,894.32 5,000.00 9,700.00 
3. 210-0100 Grading Complete – (B-2) 572,300.00 575,000.00 514,448.67 387,950.00 666,500.00 
4. 310-1101 Gr Aggr Base Course, Incl. Material 34,254.00 39,963.00 30,980.84 36,061.85 30,010.31 
5. 318-3000 Aggr Surf Crs 3,150.00 2,756.25 2,460.50 2,712.50 3,136.00 


6.
402-1812


Recycled Asph Conc. Leveling, Incl Bitum Matl & 
H Lime 42,048.00 52,560.00 44,092.00 45,552.00 50,591.92 


7.
402-3130


Recycled Asph Conc 12.5 MM Superpave, Gp 2 
Only, Incl. Bitum Matl & H Lime 29,016.00 30,628.00 30,426.50 31,434.00 29,616.47 


8.
402-3121


Recycled Asph Conc 25 MM Superpave, Gp 1 or 2, 
Incl. Bitum Matl & H Lime 25,833.75 25,730.00 26,975.00 29,050.00 33,283.00 


9.
402-3190


Recycled Asph Conc 19 MM Superpave, Gp 1 or 2, 
Incl. Bitum Matl & H Lime 20,867.00 24,332.00 21,791.00 21,560.00 23,537.36 


10. 413-1000 Bitum Tack Coat 2,161.60 1,544.00 2,238.80 2,316.00 1,582.60 
11. 433-1000 Reinf. Conc. Approach Slab 11,532.25 36,507.00 40,610.50 41,884.00 42,450.00 
12. 441-0016 Driveway Concrete, 6 in Thick 11,779.25 11,872.00 12,243.00 11,501.00 24,115.00 
13. 441-0050 Conc. Slope Drain 151.00 400.00 300.00 398.00 1,100.00 
14. 441-0303 Conc. Spillway, TP 3 1,710.00 1,700.00 1,600.00 1,850.00 2,100.00 
15. 446-1100 Pvmt Reinf Fabric Strips, TP 2, 18 inch width 3,185.35 1,676.50 1,944.74 3,353.00 1,719.61 
16. 500-3200 Class B Concrete 6,820.00 8,300.00 6,500.00 8,000.00 13,300.00 
17. 500-9999 Class B Conc., Base or Pvmt Widening 21,896.00 19,635.00 15,784.16 1,487.50 119.00 
18. 620-0100 Temporary Barrier, Method No. 1 8,270.50 12,232.00 5,282.00 8,492.90 10,703.00 
19. 634-1200 Right of Way Markers 2,222.00 2,750.00 2,111.12 2,310.00 2,420.00 
20. 641-1100 Guardrail, TP T 6,349.50 4,565.00 5,881.38 6,017.50 5,881.38 
21. 641-1200 Guardrail, TP W 21,786.75 20,208.00 20,018.55 20,839.50 20,018.55 
22. 641-5001 Guardrail Anchorage, TP 1 1,578.00 1,200.00 1,460.00 1,500.00 1,460.00 
23. 641-5012 Guardrail Anchorage, TP 12 4,220.00 2,550.00 3,896.00 4,000.00 3,896.00 
24. 643-1137 Chain Link Fence, Zinc Coated, 5-ft, 9 Gage 6,387.50 5,950.00 5,894.00 6,037.50 5,953.50 
25. 643-8200 Barrier Fence (Orange), 4-ft 160.00 75.00 125.00 100.00 76.00 


881,798.45 914,633.75 818,531.14 693,587.25 997,769.70 


1. 550-1300 Storm Drain Pipe, 30-in, H 1-10 7,842.25 6,350.00 5,374.64 11,398.25 7,330.44 
2. 550-2180 Side Drain Pipe, 18-in, H 1-10 7,823.25 5,490.00 2,481.48 5,242.95 6,015.21 
3. 550-3618 Safety End Section 18-in, Side Drain, 6:1 Slope 5,712.00 6,600.00 6,057.48 6,780.00 8,862.00 
4. 550-3330 Safety End Section 30-in, Storm Drain, 4:1 Slope 2,580.00 2,100.00 1,944.02 2,560.00 897.94 


23,957.50 20,540.00 15,857.62 25,981.20 23,105.59 


1. 636-1020 Highway Signs, TP 1 Matl, Refl Sheeting, TP 3 205.00 250.00 160.00 165.00 160.00 
2. 636-1033 Highway Signs, TP 1 Matl, Refl Sheeting, TP 9 705.25 713.00 589.00 651.00 589.00 
3. 636-2070 Galv Steel Posts, TP 7 664.20 656.00 738.00 779.00 738.00 
4. 653-1501 Thermoplastic Solid Traf Stripe, 5-in White 1,526.40 2,385.00 1,971.60 2,067.00 1,971.60 
5. 653-1502 Thermoplastic Solid Traf Stripe, 5-in Yellow 1,590.00 2,385.00 1,971.60 2,067.00 1,971.60 
6. 654-1001 Raised Pvmt Markers, TP 1 140.80 220.00 233.20 242.00 233.20 


7.
657-1054


Preformed Plastic Solid Pvmt Mkg, 5-in, White, TP 
PB 1,854.00 1,440.00 1,296.00 1,440.00 1,296.00 


8. 657-6054
Preformed Plastic Solid Pvmt Mkg, 5-in, Yellow, TP 
PB 1,854.00 1,440.00 1,296.00 1,440.00 1,296.00 


8,539.65 9,489.00 8,255.40 8,851.00 8,255.40 


1. 163-0232 Temporary Grassing 736.00 700.00 372.66 500.00 680.00 
2. 163-0240 Mulch 9,842.00 9,120.00 10,175.26 9,500.00 9,120.00 
3. 163-0300 Construction Exit 2,440.00 1,700.00 1,578.38 2,400.00 3,000.00 


4.
163-0520 Construct and Remove Temporary Pipe Slope Drain


910.00 1,365.00 1,287.65 1,547.00 1,820.00 


Southeastern 
Site Dev, Inc.


E.R. Snell 
Contractor, 


Inc.


McCarthy 
Improvement 


Co, Inc.
McCoy 


Grading, Inc.


Sunbelt 
Structures, 


Inc.


Bid #850: Road Construction on Westbridge Road, Including Bridge over Morning Creek


ROADWAY


DRAINAGE


TRAFFIC SIGNS AND MARKING


EROSION CONTROL


P:\Ted B\Public Works\850 Westbridge Rd Bridge\Tally.xls







NUMBER ITEM
Southeastern 
Site Dev, Inc.


E.R. Snell 
Contractor, 


Inc.


McCarthy 
Improvement 


Co, Inc.
McCoy 


Grading, Inc.


Sunbelt 
Structures, 


Inc.


5.
163-0527


Construct and Remove Rip Rap Check Dams, Stone 
Plain Rip Rap/Sand Bags 3,995.00 2,210.00 2,060.57 2,890.00 5,525.00 


6.
163-0528


Construct and Remove Fabric Check Dam – Type C 
Silt Fence 1,032.00 960.00 696.00 480.00 933.60 


7.
163-0529


Construct and Remove Temporary Sediment Barrier 
or Baled Straw Check Dam 1,969.20 1,777.75 2,390.39 1,641.00 1,843.39 


8. 163-0541 Construct and Remove Rock Filter Dams 1,143.00 675.00 609.69 2,670.00 1,425.00 
9. 163-0542 Construct and Remove Stone Filter Ring 1,893.00 450.00 396.69 1,095.00 2,550.00 


10. 165-0030 Maintenance of Temporary Silt Fence, TP C 1,374.88 1,983.00 1,956.56 2,644.00 2,115.20 


11.
165-0040


Maintenance of Erosion Control Check Dams/Ditch 
Checks 1,321.75 850.00 157.93 595.00 2,380.00 


12. 165-0041 Maintenance of Check Dams – All Types 124.80 300.00 88.80 240.00 312.00 
13. 165-0071 Maintenance of Sediment Barrier – Baled Straw 142.48 411.00 202.76 411.00 427.44 
14. 165-0101 Maintenance of Construction Exit 1,006.00 780.00 725.68 600.00 1,000.00 
15. 165-0110 Maintenance of Rock Filter dam 516.00 45.00 37.11 750.00 1,500.00 
16. 165-0111 Maintenance of Stone Filter Ring 516.00 270.00 245.67 825.00 1,500.00 
17. 167-1000 Water Quality Monitoring and Sampling 566.00 20.00 350.00 170.00 20.00 
18. 167-1500 Water Quality Inspections 12,060.00 9,000.00 13,263.12 6,570.00 12,870.00 
19. 171-0030 Temporary Silt Fence, Type C 15,332.30 11,895.75 15,649.52 14,803.60 12,530.19 
20. 603-2180 Stone Dumped Rip Rap, TP 3, 12-in 3,555.00 3,476.00 2,910.36 4,621.50 3,823.60 
21. 603-7000 Plastic Filter Fabric 521.40 276.50 385.52 434.50 790.00 
22. 715-2200 Bituminous Treated Roving, Waterways 1,740.42 1,758.00 1,916.22 2,637.00 1,617.36 
23. 716-2000 Erosion Control Mats, Slopes 2,610.72 2,331.00 2,610.72 2,952.60 2,424.24 
24. 700-6910 Permanent Grassing 3,136.00 2,900.00 3,373.08 3,600.00 2,900.00 
25. 700-7000 Agricultural Lime 1,664.00 640.00 592.64 800.00 1,536.00 
26. 700-8000 Fertilizer Mixed Grade 1,080.00 1,000.00 1,158.58 800.00 1,000.00 
27. 700-8100 Fertilizer Nitrogen Content 360.00 300.00 390.00 800.00 330.00 


71,587.95 57,194.00 65,581.56 66,977.20 75,973.02 


1. 670-1160 Water Main, 16-in 56,520.00 34,200.00 34,200.00 34,200.00 31,680.00 
2. 670-1900 Inline Plug, 16-in 756.00 1,050.00 1,052.70 1,170.00 1,200.00 
3. 670-2002 Valve Marker 210.75 273.00 273.00 258.00 600.00 
4. 670-2060 Gate Valve, 6-in 757.00 850.00 856.01 900.00 1,050.00 
5. 670-2160 Gate Valve, 16-in 16,220.00 50,000.00 50,397.00 53,000.00 13,500.00 
6. 670-4000 Fire Hydrant 3,460.00 3,400.00 3,401.26 3,550.00 3,100.00 
7. 670-5620 Water Service Line, 3/4-in 645.00 750.00 750.00 870.00 450.00 
8. 670-7000 Steel Casing, 24-in 15,560.00 20,800.00 20,800.00 20,800.00 17,600.00 
9. 670-9730 Relocate Existing Water Meter, Incl Box 865.00 550.00 550.00 595.00 700.00 


94,993.75 111,873.00 112,279.97 115,343.00 69,880.00 


1. 207-0203 Foundation Backfill Material, TP II 2,400.00 1,860.00 3,000.00 3,108.00 2,220.00 
2. 211-0300 Bridge Excavation, Stream Crossing 2,392.00 6,440.00 4,140.00 4,287.20 2,024.00 
3. 433-1000 Reinforced Conc. Approach Slab 11,573.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
4. 500-0100 Grooved Concrete 7,220.00 3,230.00 9,120.00 9,462.00 1,748.00 
5. 500-1006 Superstructure Concrete, CL AA, BR NO - 1 219,800.00 175,000.00 212,275.01 209,617.58 180,650.00 
6. 500-2100 Concrete Barrier 15,399.00 12,702.00 12,180.00 12,621.96 12,528.00 
7. 500-3002 Class AA Concrete 94,605.00 63,000.00 97,125.00 100,650.90 76,650.00 
8. 500-3700 Seal Concrete 13,053.00 7,125.00 12,825.00 13,290.69 13,110.00 
9. 507-8900 PSC Beams, AASHTO Type I Mod, BR NO -1 20,458.00 23,160.00 19,879.00 20,600.82 18,914.00 


10. 507-9003 PSC Beams, AASHTO Type III, BR NO -1 85,436.00 86,125.00 82,335.50 85,325.76 79,235.00 
11. 511-1000 Bar Reinforcing Steel 16,462.44 15,243.00 15,446.24 16,259.20 14,226.80 
12. 511-3000 Superstructure Reinforcing Steel, BR NO -1 49,800.00 69,000.00 47,150.00 48,861.55 49,260.00 
13. 520-0353 H-Pile Points, HP 12 x 53 1,110.00 660.00 780.00 808.32 990.00 
14. 520-0573 H-Pile Points, HP 14 x 73 1,372.00 875.00 980.00 1,015.56 1,225.00 
15. 520-1125 Piling in Place, Steel H, HP 12 x 53 4,702.50 6,050.00 5,527.50 5,727.70 5,390.00 
16. 520-1147 Piling in Place, Steel H, HP 14 x 73 4,860.00 7,920.00 5,242.50 5,432.40 4,770.00 
17. 520-4125 Load Test, Steel H, HP 12 x 53 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 
18. 520-4147 Load Test, Steel H, HP 14 x 73 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 
19. 520-5000 Pilot Holes 4,760.00 16,150.00 8,500.00 8,840.00 5,610.00 
20. 525-1000 Cofferdam 58,400.00 20,000.00 30,000.00 31,100.00 28,000.00 


WATERLINE QUANTITIES


BRIDGE


P:\Ted B\Public Works\850 Westbridge Rd Bridge\Tally.xls







NUMBER ITEM
Southeastern 
Site Dev, Inc.


E.R. Snell 
Contractor, 


Inc.


McCarthy 
Improvement 


Co, Inc.
McCoy 


Grading, Inc.


Sunbelt 
Structures, 


Inc.


21. 540-1102 Removal of Exist. Bridge, BR No-1 111,700.00 55,000.00 33,500.00 34,715.00 65,000.00 
22. 603-2024 Std. Dumped Rip-Rap, TP 1, 24in 62,891.25 62,485.50 21,520.98 71,412.00 74,658.00 
23. 603-7000 Plastic Filter Fabric 7,790.40 3,246.00 3,960.12 4,869.00 3,732.90 


796,186.59 635,273.50 625,488.85 688,007.64 639,943.70 


001-4000 Allowances Per Special conditions


TOTAL BASE BID


200,000.00 


$1,845,994.54 $1,798,747.29


ALLOWANCES
200,000.00 200,000.00 200,000.00 200,000.00 


$2,014,927.41$2,077,063.89 $1,949,003.25


P:\Ted B\Public Works\850 Westbridge Rd Bridge\Tally.xls





		SPLOST- Bid 850 Agenda Request File

		SPLOST- Bid 850 Backup

		Bid 850 - Purchasing Backup 1

		Bid 850 - Purchasing Backup 2

		Bid 850










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker


Approval of the Sheriff's Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division by $1,780.11 for 
reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various federal agencies.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office- Criminal Investigations Division receives monies for reimbursement for overtime funds from federal 
programs for personnel assigned to work investigations in cooperation with those agencies.


Approval of the Sheriff's Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division (10030321-511300)by 
$1,780.11 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various federal agencies.  This would revise the Overtime Budgeting 
Category to $123,255.49.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Finance - Suggest making any budget adjustments in whole dollars.


ConsentThursday, November 15, 2012





